TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS	2
Old Testament	
New Testament	2
Jehovah is GOD, Jesus is Jehovah	3
SON OF GOD: Divinity of Jesus	20
Speaks to the second coming of Jesus	
SON OF MAN: Divinity of Jesus	23
ETERNITY OF JESUS	32
EXALTATION OF JESUS	
HOLINESS OF JESUS	40
SON OF DAVID	43
HUMANITY OF JESUS	44
MESSIANIC SCRIPTURES	47
PROPHETIC CHART A: First Advent to Crucifixion (partial list)	74
PROPHETIC CHART B: First Advent of Messiah (partial list)	74

DEFINITIONS

Old Testament

03068. יהוה Y'hovah *yeh-ho-vaw'*; (5521)

from 01961; (the) self-Existent or Eternal; Jehovah, Jewish national name of God:--Jehovah, the Lord. Compare 03050, 03069.

03069. יהוה Y'hovih *yeh-ho-vee'*; (295)

a variation of 03068 [used after 0136, and pronounced by Jews as 0430, in order to prevent the repetition of the same sound, since they elsewhere pronounce 03068 as 0136]:--God.

03050. יה Yahh yaw; (45)

contraction for 03068, and meaning the same; Jah, the sacred name:--Jah, the Lord, most vehement. Compare names in "- iah, ""- jah." Greek 239.

0430. אלהים Æelohiym *el-o-heem'*; (2249)

plural of 0433; gods in the ordinary sense; but specifically used (in the plural thus, especially with the article) of the supreme God; occasionally applied by way of deference to magistrates; and sometimes as a superlative:--angels, X exceeding, God (gods)(-dess, -ly), X (very) great, judges, X mighty.

New Testament

2962. κυριος kurios koo'-ree-os; (687)

from $\kappa u \rho o \varsigma$ kuros (supremacy); supreme in authority, i.e. (as noun) controller; by implication, Mr. (as a respectful title):--God, Lord, master, Sir.

2316 θεος theos theh'-os; (1343)

of uncertain affinity; a deity, especially (with 3588) the supreme Divinity; TDNT-3:65,322; n m

AV-God 1320, god 13, godly 3, God-ward + 4214 2, misc 5; 1343

1) a god or goddess, a general name of deities or divinities

- 2) the Godhead, trinity
 - 2a) God the Father, the first person in the trinity
 - 2b) Christ, the second person of the trinity
 - 2c) Holy Spirit, the third person in the trinity
- 3) spoken of the only and true God
 - 3a) refers to the things of God
 - 3b) his counsels, interests, things due to him
- 4) whatever can in any respect be likened unto God, or resemble him in any way
 - 4a) God's representative or viceregent
 - 4a1) of magistrates and judges

Jehovah is GOD, Jesus is Jehovah

lsa 40:3

The voice of one crying in the wilderness: "Prepare the way of the <u>LORD</u> <**03068. יהוה** Y'hovah>; make straight in the desert a highway for our <u>God</u> <**0430. אלהים** Æelohiym>.

Matt 3:3

For this is he who was spoken of by the prophet Isaiah, saying: "The voice of one crying in the wilderness: `Prepare the way of the Lord;<**2962.** κυριος kurios> make His paths straight.' "

Ps 24:7

Lift up your heads, O you gates! And be lifted up, you everlasting doors! And the <u>King</u> of glory shall come in.

Ps 24:10

Who is this King of glory? The LORD <**03068. יהוה Y'hovah>** of hosts, he is the King of glory. Selah

1 Cor 2:8

which none of the rulers of this age knew; for had they known, they would not have crucified the Lord ;<2962. κυριος kurios> of glory.

James 2:1

My brethren, do not hold the faith of our Lord ;<**2962.** κυριος kurios> Jesus Christ, the Lord of glory, with partiality.

Jer 23:5-6

- 5 "Behold, the days are coming," says the LORD **<03068. יהוה Y'hovah>**, "That I will raise to David a Branch of righteousness; a King shall reign and prosper, and execute judgment and righteousness in the earth.
- 6 In His days Judah will be saved, and Israel will dwell safely; now this is His name by which He will be called: THE LORD OUR RIGHTEOUSNESS.

1 Cor 1:30

But of Him you are in Christ Jesus, who became for us wisdom from God-- and righteousness and sanctification and redemption--

Ps 97:9

For You, LORD,<**03068. יה**וה **Y'hovah>** are most high above all the earth; you are exalted far above all gods.

John 3:31

"He who comes from above <u>is above all</u>; he who is of the earth is earthly and speaks of the earth. <u>He who comes from heaven is above all</u>.

lsa 44:6

"Thus says the LORD, <**03068. יהוה Y'hovah>** the King of Israel, and his <u>Redeemer</u>, the LORD <**03068. יהוה Y'hovah>** of hosts: `I am the <u>First</u> and I am the <u>Last; besides</u> <u>Me there is no God</u>.

Rev 1:17

And when I saw Him, I fell at His feet as dead. But He laid His right hand on me, saying to me, "Do not be afraid; <u>I am the First and the Las</u>t.

lsa 48:12-16

- 12 "Listen to Me, O Jacob, and Israel, My called: <u>I am He</u>, <u>I am the Firs</u>t, <u>I am also</u> <u>the Las</u>t.
- 13 Indeed My hand has laid the foundation of the earth, and My right hand has stretched out the heavens; when I call to them, they stand up together.
- 14 "All of you, assemble yourselves, and hear! Who among them has declared these things? The LORD <**03069. יהוה Y'hovih>** loves him; he shall do His pleasure on Babylon, and His arm shall be against the Chaldeans.
- 15 I, even I, have spoken; yes, I have called him, I have brought him, and his way will prosper.
- 16 "Come near to Me, hear this: I have not spoken in secret from the beginning; from the time that it was, I was there. And now the Lord GOD <**03069.** "הוה Y'hovih> and His Spirit have sent Me."

Rev 22:13

"<u>I am</u> the Alpha and the Omega, the Beginning and the End, the First and the Last."

Zech 13:7

"Awake, O sword, against My Shepherd, against the Man who is My Companion," says the LORD <**03069. יהוה Y'hovih>** of hosts. "Strike the Shepherd, and the sheep will be scattered; then I will turn My hand against the little ones.

Phil 2:6

who, being in the form of God, **<2316** $\theta \epsilon \circ \varsigma$ theos> did not consider it robbery to be equal with God, **<2316** $\theta \epsilon \circ \varsigma$ theos>

lsa 6:1-3

- 1 In the year that King Uzziah died, I saw the Lord sitting on a throne, high and lifted up, and the train of His robe filled the temple.
- 2 Above it stood seraphim; each one had six wings: with two he covered his face, with two he covered his feet, and with two he flew.
- 3 And one cried to another and said: "Holy, holy, holy is the LORD of hosts; the whole earth is full of His glory!"

John 12:41

These things Isaiah said when he saw His glory and spoke of Him.

lsa 8:13-14

- 13 The LORD of hosts, Him you shall hallow; let Him be your fear, and let Him be your dread.
- 14 He will be as a sanctuary, but a stone of stumbling and a rock of offense to both the houses of Israel, as a trap and a snare to the inhabitants of Jerusalem.

1 Pet 2:8

and "A stone of stumbling and a rock of offense." They stumble, being disobedient to the word, to which they also were appointed.

Ps 110:1

The LORD said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool."

Matt 22:42-45

- 42 saying, "What do you think about the Christ? Whose Son is He?" They said to Him, "The Son of David."
- 43 He said to them, "How then does David in the Spirit call Him `Lord,' saying:
- 44 `The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool" '?
- 45 "If David then calls Him `Lord,' how is He his Son?"

Isa 40:10-11

- 10 Behold, the Lord GOD shall come with a strong hand, and His arm shall rule for Him; behold, His reward is with Him, and His work before Him.
- 11 He will feed His flock like a shepherd; he will gather the lambs with His arm, and carry them in His bosom, and gently lead those who are with young.

Heb 13:20

Now may the God of peace who brought up our Lord Jesus from the dead, that great Shepherd of the sheep, through the blood of the everlasting covenant,

Prov 16:4

The LORD <**03068. יהוה Y'hovah>** has made all for Himself, yes, even the wicked for the day of doom.

Col 1:16

For by Him all things were created that are in heaven and that are on earth, visible and invisible, whether thrones or dominions or principalities or powers. All things were created through Him and for Him.

Mal 3:1

"Behold, <u>I send My messenge</u>r, and <u>he will prepare the way before Me</u>. And the Lord, whom you seek, will suddenly come to His temple, even the Messenger of the covenant, in whom you delight. Behold, He is coming," says the LORD of hosts.

John 3:28-36

- 28 "You yourselves bear me witness, that I said, 'I am not the Christ,' but, <u>'I have</u> been sent before Him.'
- 29 "He who has the bride is the bridegroom; but the friend of the bridegroom, who stands and hears him, rejoices greatly because of the bridegroom's voice. Therefore this joy of mine is fulfilled.
- 30 "He must increase, but I must decrease.
- 31 "<u>He who comes from above is above all</u>; he who is of the earth is earthly and speaks of the earth. He who comes from heaven is above all.
- 32 "And what He has seen and heard, that He testifies; and no one receives His testimony.
- 33 "He who has received His testimony has certified that God is true.
- 34 "For He whom God has sent speaks the words of God, for God does not give the Spirit by measure.
- 35 "The Father loves the Son, and has given all things into His hand.
- 36 "He who believes in the Son has everlasting life; and he who does not believe the Son shall not see life, but the wrath of God abides on him."

Matthew 23:39-24:1

- 23:39 For I say unto you, Ye shall not see me henceforth, till ye shall say, Blessed *is* he that cometh in the name of the Lord.
- 24:1 ¶ And Jesus went out, and departed from the temple: and his disciples came to *him* for to shew him the buildings of the temple.

Acts 19:4

Then Paul said, "John indeed baptized with a baptism of repentance, saying to the people that they should <u>believe on Him who would come after him</u>, that is, on <u>Christ</u> Jesus."

Joel 2:32

And it shall come to pass that whoever calls on the name of the LORD **<03068. יהוה Y'hovah>** shall be saved. For in Mount Zion and in Jerusalem there shall be deliverance, as the LORD **<03068. hwhy Y'hovah>** has said, among the remnant whom the LORD **<03068. hwhy Y'hovah>** calls.

Acts 15:11

But we believe that through the grace of the <u>Lord Jesus Christ</u> we shall be saved, even as they.

Acts 2:21

And it shall come to pass, [that] whosoever shall call on the name of the Lord shall be saved.

John 10:9

<u>I am the doo</u>r: by me if any man enter in, <u>he shall be saved</u>, and shall go in and out, and find pasture.

Romans 5:9-10

- 9 Much more then, being now justified by his blood, we shall be saved from wrath through him.
- 10 For if, when we were enemies, we were reconciled to God by the death of his Son, much more, being reconciled, we shall be saved by his life

Rom 10:13-14

- 13 For "whoever calls on the name of the Lord shall be saved."
- 14 How then shall they call on Him in whom they have not believed? And how shall they believe in Him of whom they have not heard? And how shall they hear without a preacher?

1 Cor 1:2

To the church of God which is at Corinth, to those who are sanctified in Christ Jesus, called to be saints, with all who in every place call on the name of Jesus Christ our Lord, both theirs and ours:

Ps 102:24-27

- I said, "O my God, do not take me away in the midst of my days; your years are throughout all generations.
- 25 Of old You laid the foundation of the earth, and the heavens are the work of Your hands.
- 26 They will perish, but You will endure; yes, they will all grow old like a garment; like a cloak You will change them, and they will be changed.
- 27 But You are the same, and Your years will have no end.

Heb 1:8

But <u>to the Son</u> He says: "<u>Your throne, O God</u>, is forever and ever; a scepter of righteousness is the scepter of Your Kingdom.

Heb 1:10-12

- 10 And: "You, Lord, in the beginning laid the foundation of the earth, and the heavens are the work of Your hands.
- 11 They will perish, but You remain; and they will all grow old like a garment;
- 12 Like a cloak You will fold them up, and they will be changed. But You are the same, and Your years will not fail."

Hosea 1:7

Yet I will have mercy on the house of Judah, will save them by the LORD their God, and will not save them by bow, nor by sword or battle, by horses or horsemen."

Titus 2:13

looking for the blessed hope and glorious appearing of our great <u>God and Savior</u> Jesus Christ,

Rom 9:5

of whom are the fathers and from whom, according to the flesh, <u>Christ came</u>, who is over all, <u>the eternally blessed God</u>. Amen.

Eccl 12:14

For <u>God will bring every work into judgment</u>, including every secret thing, whether good or evil.

1 Cor 4:5

Therefore judge nothing before the time, until the Lord comes, who will both bring to light the hidden things of darkness and reveal the counsels of the hearts. Then each one's praise will come from God.

2 Cor 5:10

For we must all appear before the <u>judgment seat of Christ</u>, that each one may receive the things done in the body, according to what he has done, whether good or bad.

2 Tim 4:1

I charge you therefore before God and the <u>Lord Jesus Christ, who will judge the</u> <u>living and the dead</u> at His appearing and His kingdom:

Dan 10:17

"For how can this servant of my lord talk with you, my lord? As for me, no strength remains in me now, nor is any breath left in me."

Rev 1:5

and from Jesus Christ, the faithful witness, the firstborn from the dead, and the ruler over the kings of the earth. To Him who loved us and washed us from our sins in His own blood,

Rev 17:14

"These will make war with the Lamb, and the Lamb will overcome them, for He is Lord of lords and King of kings; and those who are with Him are called, chosen, and faithful."

1 Sam 2:2

"<u>No one is holy like the LORD</u>, for there is none besides You, nor is there any rock like our God.

Acts 3:14

"But you <u>denied the Holy One</u> and the Just, and asked for a murderer to be granted to you,

1 Cor 15:47

The first man was of the earth, made of dust; the second Man is the Lord from heaven.

Gen 2:3

Then <u>God blessed the seventh day</u> and sanctified it, because in it He rested from all His work which God had created and made.

Matt 12:8

"For the Son of Man is Lord even of the Sabbath."

Acts 10:36

"The word which God sent to the children of Israel, preaching peace through Jesus Christ-- He is Lord of all--

Rom 10:11-13

- 11 For the Scripture says, "Whoever believes on Him will not be put to shame."
- 12 For there is no distinction between Jew and Greek, for the same Lord over all is rich to all who call upon Him.
- 13 For "whoever calls on the name of the Lord shall be saved."

Matt 26:63-67

- 63 But Jesus kept silent. And the high priest answered and said to Him, "I put You under oath by the living God: <u>Tell us if You are the Christ, the Son of God</u>!"
- 64 Jesus said to him, "<u>It is as you said</u>. Nevertheless, I say to you, hereafter you will see the Son of Man sitting at the right hand of the Power, and coming on the clouds of heaven."
- 65 Then the high priest tore his clothes, saying, "He has spoken blasphemy! What further need do we have of witnesses? Look, now you have heard His blasphemy!
- 66 "What do you think?" They answered and said, "He is deserving of death."
- 67 Then they spat in His face and beat Him; and others struck Him with the palms of their hands,

John 1:14

And the <u>Word became flesh</u> and <u>dwelt among us</u>, and we beheld His glory, the glory as of the only begotten of the Father, full of grace and truth.

John 18:(All)

- 1 When Jesus had spoken these words, He went out with His disciples over the Brook Kidron, where there was a garden, which He and His disciples entered.
- 2 And Judas, who betrayed Him, also knew the place; for Jesus often met there with His disciples.
- 3 Then Judas, having received a detachment of troops, and officers from the chief priests and Pharisees, came there with lanterns, torches, and weapons.

- 4 Jesus therefore, knowing all things that would come upon Him, went forward and said to them, "Whom are you seeking?"
- 5 They answered Him, "Jesus of Nazareth." Jesus said to them, "I am He." And Judas, who betrayed Him, also stood with them.
- 6 Then-- when He said to them, "I am He,"-- they drew back and fell to the ground.
- 7 Then He asked them again, "Whom are you seeking?" And they said, "Jesus of Nazareth."
- 8 Jesus answered, "I have told you that I am He. Therefore, if you seek Me, let these go their way,"
- 9 that the saying might be fulfilled which He spoke, "Of those whom You gave Me I have lost none."
- 10 Then Simon Peter, having a sword, drew it and struck the high priest's servant, and cut off his right ear. The servant's name was Malchus.
- 11 Then Jesus said to Peter, "Put your sword into the sheath. Shall I not drink the cup which My Father has given Me?"
- 12 Then the detachment of troops and the captain and the officers of the Jews arrested Jesus and bound Him.
- 13 And they led Him away to Annas first, for he was the father-in-law of Caiaphas who was high priest that year.
- 14 Now it was Caiaphas who advised the Jews that it was expedient that one man should die for the people.
- 15 And Simon Peter followed Jesus, and so did another disciple. Now that disciple was known to the high priest, and went with Jesus into the courtyard of the high priest.
- ¹⁶But Peter stood at the door outside. Then the other disciple, who was known to the high priest, went out and spoke to her who kept the door, and brought Peter in.
- 17 Then the servant girl who kept the door said to Peter, "You are not also one of this Man's disciples, are you?" He said, "I am not."
- 18 And the servants and officers who had made a fire of coals stood there, for it was cold, and they warmed themselves. And Peter stood with them and warmed himself.
- 19 The high priest then asked Jesus about His disciples and His doctrine.
- 20 Jesus answered him, "I spoke openly to the world. I always taught in synagogues and in the temple, where the Jews always meet, and in secret I have said nothing.
- 21 "Why do you ask Me? Ask those who have heard Me what I said to them. Indeed they know what I said."
- 22 And when He had said these things, one of the officers who stood by struck Jesus with the palm of his hand, saying, "Do You answer the high priest like that?"
- 23 Jesus answered him, "If I have spoken evil, bear witness of the evil; but if well, why do you strike Me?"
- 24 Then Annas sent Him bound to Caiaphas the high priest.
- 25 Now Simon Peter stood and warmed himself. Therefore they said to him, "You are not also one of His disciples, are you?" He denied it and said, "I am not!"

- 26 One of the servants of the high priest, a relative of him whose ear Peter cut off, said, "Did I not see you in the garden with Him?"
- 27 Peter then denied again; and immediately a rooster crowed.
- 28 Then they led Jesus from Caiaphas to the Praetorium, and it was early morning. But they themselves did not go into the Praetorium, lest they should be defiled, but that they might eat the Passover.
- 29 Pilate then went out to them and said, "What accusation do you bring against this Man?"
- 30 They answered and said to him, "If He were not an evildoer, we would not have delivered Him up to you."
- 31 Then Pilate said to them, "You take Him and judge Him according to your law." Therefore the Jews said to him, "It is not lawful for us to put anyone to death,"
- 32 that the saying of Jesus might be fulfilled which He spoke, signifying by what death He would die.
- 33 Then Pilate entered the Praetorium again, called Jesus, and said to Him, "Are You the King of the Jews?"
- 34 Jesus answered him, "Are you speaking for yourself about this, or did others tell you this about Me?"
- 35 Pilate answered, "Am I a Jew? Your own nation and the chief priests have delivered You to me. What have You done?"
- 36 Jesus answered, "<u>My kingdom is not of this world</u>. If My kingdom were of this world, My servants would fight, so that I should not be delivered to the Jews; but now My kingdom is not from here."
- 37 Pilate therefore said to Him, "Are You a king then?" Jesus answered, "<u>You say</u> <u>rightly that I am a king</u>. For this cause I was born, and for this cause I have come into the world, that I should bear witness to the truth. Everyone who is of the truth hears My voice."
- 38 Pilate said to Him, "What is truth?" And when he had said this, he went out again to the Jews, and said to them, "I find no fault in Him at all.
- 39 "But you have a custom that I should release someone to you at the Passover. Do you therefore want me to release to you the King of the Jews?"
- 40 Then they all cried again, saying, "Not this Man, but Barabbas!" Now Barabbas was a robber.

Acts 20:28

"Therefore take heed to yourselves and to all the flock, among which the Holy Spirit has made you overseers, to shepherd the <u>church of God</u> which <u>He</u> purchased with His own blood.

John 10:30

"I and My Father are one."

John 10:38

"but if I do, though you do not believe Me, believe the works, that you may know and believe that the Father is in Me, and I in Him." John 12:45

"And he who sees Me sees Him who sent Me.

John 14:7-10

- 7 "If you had known Me, you would have known My Father also; and from now on you know Him and have seen Him."
- 8 Philip said to Him, "Lord, show us the Father, and it is sufficient for us."
- 9 Jesus said to him, "Have I been with you so long, and yet you have not known Me, Philip? He who has seen Me has seen the Father; so how can you say, `Show us the Father'?
- 10 "Do you not believe that I am in the Father, and the Father in Me? The words that I speak to you I do not speak on My own authority; but the Father who dwells in Me does the works.

John 17:10

"And all Mine are Yours, and Yours are Mine, and I am glorified in them.

John 14:16

"And I will pray the Father, and He will give you another Helper, that He may abide with you forever--

John 15:26

"But when the Helper comes, whom I shall send to you from the Father, the Spirit of truth who proceeds from the Father, He will testify of Me.

Prov 30:4

Who has ascended into heaven, or descended? Who has gathered the wind in His fists? Who has bound the waters in a garment? Who has established all the ends of the earth? What is His name, and what is His Son's name, if you know?

lsa 40:28

Have you not known? Have you not heard? The everlasting God, the LORD, the Creator of the ends of the earth, neither faints nor is weary. His understanding is unsearchable.

John 1:3

All things were made through Him, and without Him nothing was made that was made.

Col 1:16

For by Him all things were created that are in heaven and that are on earth, visible and invisible, whether thrones or dominions or principalities or powers. All things were created through Him and for Him. Neh 9:6

You alone are the LORD; you have made heaven, the heaven of heavens, with all their host, the earth and everything on it, the seas and all that is in them, and You preserve them all. The host of heaven worships You.

Gen 17:1

When Abram was ninety-nine years old, the LORD appeared to Abram and said to him, "I am Almighty God; walk before Me and be blameless.

Gen 48:15-16

- 15 And he blessed Joseph, and said: "God, before whom my fathers Abraham and Isaac walked, the God who has fed me all my life long to this day,
- 16 The Angel who has redeemed me from all evil, bless the lads; let my name be named upon them, and the name of my fathers Abraham and Isaac; and let
- them grow into a multitude in the midst of the earth."

Gen 32:24-30

- 24 Then Jacob was left alone; and a Man wrestled with him until the breaking of day.
- 25 Now when He saw that He did not prevail against him, He touched the socket of his hip; and the socket of Jacob's hip was out of joint as He wrestled with him.
- 26 And He said, "Let Me go, for the day breaks." But he said, "I will not let You go unless You bless me!"
- 27 So He said to him, "What is your name?" And he said, "Jacob."
- And He said, "Your name shall no longer be called Jacob, but Israel; for you have struggled with God and with men, and have prevailed."
- 29 Then Jacob asked, saying, "Tell me Your name, I pray." And He said, "Why is it that you ask about My name?" And He blessed him there.
- 30 And Jacob called the name of the place Peniel: "For I have seen God face to face, and my life is preserved."

Hosea 12:3-5

- 3 He took his brother by the heel in the womb, and in his strength he struggled with God.
- 4 Yes, he struggled with the Angel and prevailed; he wept, and sought favor from Him. He found Him in Bethel, and there He spoke to us--
- 5 That is, the LORD God of hosts. The LORD is His memorable name.

Judg 6:22-24

- 22 Now Gideon perceived that He was the Angel of the LORD. So Gideon said, "Alas, O Lord GOD! For I have seen the Angel of the LORD face to face."
- 23 Then the LORD said to him, "Peace be with you; do not fear, you shall not die."
- 24 So Gideon built an altar there to the LORD, and called it Theord- Is-Peace. To this day it is still in Ophrah of the Abiezrites.

Judg 13:21-22

- 21 When the Angel of the LORD appeared no more to Manoah and his wife, then Manoah knew that He was the Angel of the LORD.
- And Manoah said to his wife, "We shall surely die, because we have seen God!"

Job 19:25-27

- 25 For I know that my Redeemer lives, and He shall stand at last on the earth;
- And after my skin is destroyed, this I know, that in my flesh I shall see God,
- 27 Whom I shall see for myself, and my eyes shall behold, and not another. How my heart yearns within me!

Gen 1:1-14

- 1 In the beginning God created the heavens and the earth.
- 2 The earth was without form, and void; and darkness was on the face of the deep. And the Spirit of God was hovering over the face of the waters.
- 3 Then God said, "Let there be light"; and there was light.
- 4 And God saw the light, that it was good; and God divided the light from the darkness.
- 5 God called the light Day, and the darkness He called Night. So the evening and the morning were the first day.
- 6 Then God said, "Let there be a firmament in the midst of the waters, and let it divide the waters from the waters."
- 7 Thus God made the firmament, and divided the waters which were under the firmament from the waters which were above the firmament; and it was so.
- 8 And God called the firmament Heaven. So the evening and the morning were the second day.
- 9 Then God said, "Let the waters under the heavens be gathered together into one place, and let the dry land appear"; and it was so.
- 10 And God called the dry land Earth, and the gathering together of the waters He called Seas. And God saw that it was good.
- 11 Then God said, "Let the earth bring forth grass, the herb that yields seed, and the fruit tree that yields fruit according to its kind, whose seed is in itself, on the earth"; and it was so.
- 12 And the earth brought forth grass, the herb that yields seed according to its kind, and the tree that yields fruit, whose seed is in itself according to its kind. And God saw that it was good.
- 13 So the evening and the morning were the third day.
- 14 Then God said, "Let there be lights in the firmament of the heavens to divide the day from the night; and let them be for signs and seasons, and for days and years;

Exod 23:20-21

- 20 "Behold, I send an Angel before you to keep you in the way and to bring you into the place which I have prepared.
- 21 "Beware of Him and obey His voice; do not provoke Him, for He will not pardon your transgressions; for My name is in Him.

Num 21:6

So the LORD sent fiery serpents among the people, and they bit the people; and many of the people of Israel died.

Ps 45:6-7

- 6 Your throne, O God, is forever and ever; a scepter of righteousness is the scepter of Your kingdom.
- 7 You love righteousness and hate wickedness; therefore God, Your God, has anointed You with the oil of gladness more than Your companions.

Ps 102:24-27

- I said, "O my God, do not take me away in the midst of my days; your years are throughout all generations.
- 25 Of old You laid the foundation of the earth, and the heavens are the work of Your hands.
- 26 They will perish, but You will endure; yes, they will all grow old like a garment; like a cloak You will change them, and they will be changed.
- 27 But You are the same, and Your years will have no end.

Ps 110:1

The LORD said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool."

lsa 6:1

In the year that King Uzziah died, I saw the Lord sitting on a throne, high and lifted up, and the train of His robe filled the temple.

Isa 8:13-14

- 13 The LORD of hosts, Him you shall hallow; let Him be your fear, and let Him be your dread.
- 14 He will be as a sanctuary, but a stone of stumbling and a rock of offense to both the houses of Israel, as a trap and a snare to the inhabitants of Jerusalem.

lsa 40:3

The voice of one crying in the wilderness: "Prepare the way of the LORD; make straight in the desert a highway for our God.

lsa 40:9-10

9 O Zion, you who bring good tidings, get up into the high mountain; O Jerusalem, you who bring good tidings, lift up your voice with strength, lift it up, be not afraid;

say to the cities of Judah, "Behold your God!"

10 Behold, the Lord GOD shall come with a strong hand, and His arm shall rule for Him; behold, His reward is with Him, and His work before Him.

Mal 3:1

"Behold, I send My messenger, and he will prepare the way before Me. And the Lord, whom you seek, will suddenly come to His temple, even the Messenger of the covenant, in whom you delight. Behold, He is coming," says the LORD of hosts.

Matt 3:3

For this is he who was spoken of by the prophet Isaiah, saying: "The voice of one crying in the wilderness: `Prepare the way of the Lord; make His paths straight.' "

Matt 11:10

"For this is he of whom it is written: `Behold, I send My messenger before Your face, who will prepare Your way before You.'

Matt 22:43-45

- 43 He said to them, "How then does David in the Spirit call Him `Lord,' saying:
- 14 The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool" '?
- 45 "If David then calls Him `Lord,' how is He his Son?"

Matt 28:17-18

- 17 When they saw Him, they worshiped Him; but some doubted.
- 18 And Jesus came and spoke to them, saying, "All authority has been given to Me in heaven and on earth.

Luke 4:12

And Jesus answered and said to him, "It has been said, 'You shall not tempt the Lord your God."

Luke 4:33-34

- 33 Now in the synagogue there was a man who had a spirit of an unclean demon. And he cried out with a loud voice,
- 34 saying, "Let us alone! What have we to do with You, Jesus of Nazareth? Did You come to destroy us? I know who You are-- the Holy One of God!"

John 1:1-2, 14

- 1 In the beginning was the Word, and the Word was with God, and the Word was God.
- 2 He was in the beginning with God.
- 14 And the Word became flesh and dwelt among us, and we beheld His glory, the glory as of the only begotten of the Father, full of grace and truth.

John 5:17-18

- 17 But Jesus answered them, "My Father has been working until now, and I have been working."
- 18 Therefore the Jews sought all the more to kill Him, because He not only broke the Sabbath, but also said that God was His Father, making Himself equal with God.

John 10:30-33

- 30 "I and My Father are one."
- 31 Then the Jews took up stones again to stone Him.
- 32 Jesus answered them, "Many good works I have shown you from My Father. For which of those works do you stone Me?"
- 33 The Jews answered Him, saying, "For a good work we do not stone You, but for blasphemy, and because You, being a Man, make Yourself God."

John 12:41

These things Isaiah said when he saw His glory and spoke of Him.

John 12:45

"And he who sees Me sees Him who sent Me.

John 20:28

And Thomas answered and said to Him, "My Lord and my God!"

Acts 7:37-39

- 37 "This is that Moses who said to the children of Israel, `The Lord your God will raise up for you a Prophet like me from your brethren. Him you shall hear.'
- 38 "This is he who was in the congregation in the wilderness with the Angel who spoke to him on Mount Sinai, and with our fathers, the one who received the living oracles to give to us,
- 39 "whom our fathers would not obey, but rejected. And in their hearts they turned back to Egypt,

Acts 20:28

"Therefore take heed to yourselves and to all the flock, among which the Holy Spirit has made you overseers, to shepherd the church of God which He purchased with His own blood.

Rom 1:7

To all who are in Rome, beloved of God, called to be saints: Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

1 Cor 1:3

Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

1 Cor 2:8

which none of the rulers of this age knew; for had they known, they would not have crucified the Lord of glory.

1 Cor 8:6

yet for us there is one God, the Father, of whom are all things, and we for Him; and one Lord Jesus Christ, through whom are all things, and through whom we live.

1 Cor 10:9

nor let us tempt Christ, as some of them also tempted, and were destroyed by serpents;

1 Cor 15:47

The first man was of the earth, made of dust; the second Man is the Lord from heaven.

2 Cor 1:2

Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

Gal 1:1-2

- 1 Paul, an apostle (not from men nor through man, but through Jesus Christ and God the Father who raised Him from the dead),
- 2 and all the brethren who are with me, To the churches of Galatia:

Eph 1:2

Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

Eph 6:23-24

- 23 Peace to the brethren, and love with faith, from God the Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.
- Grace be with all those who love our Lord Jesus Christ in sincerity. Amen.

Phil 1:2

Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

Col 1:2

To the saints and faithful brethren in Christ who are in Colosse: Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

1Thes 1:1

Paul, Silvanus, and Timothy, To the church of the Thessalonians in God the Father and the Lord Jesus Christ: Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

1Thes 3:11

Now may our God and Father Himself, and our Lord Jesus Christ, direct our way to you.

2 Th 1:1-2

- 1 Paul, Silvanus, and Timothy, To the church of the Thessalonians in God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ:
- 2 Grace to you and peace from God our Father and the Lord Jesus Christ.

II Th 2:16-17

- 16 Now may our Lord Jesus Christ Himself, and our God and Father, who has loved us and given us everlasting consolation and good hope by grace,
- 17 comfort your hearts and establish you in every good word and work.

1 Tim 3:16

And without controversy great is the mystery of godliness: God was manifested in the flesh, justified in the Spirit, seen by angels, preached among the Gentiles, believed on in the world, received up in glory.

2 Tim 1:2

To Timothy, a beloved son: Grace, mercy, and peace from God the Father and Christ Jesus our Lord.

Titus 2:13

looking for the blessed hope and glorious appearing of our great God and Savior Jesus Christ,

Heb 1:10

And: "You, Lord, in the beginning laid the foundation of the earth, and the heavens are the work of Your hands.

1 Pet 2:8

and "A stone of stumbling and a rock of offense." They stumble, being disobedient to the word, to which they also were appointed.

SON OF GOD: Divinity of Jesus

lsa 7:14

"Therefore the Lord Himself will give you a sign: Behold, the <u>virgin shall conceive</u> and bear a Son, and shall <u>call His name Immanuel</u>.

lsa 9:6

For unto us a Child is born, unto us a Son is given; and the government will be upon His shoulder. And His name will be called wonderful, Counselor, <u>Mighty God</u>, everlasting Father, Prince of Peace.

Matt 1:21-23

- 21 "And she will bring forth a Son, and you shall call His name Jesus, for He will save His people from their sins."
- 22 So all this was done that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the Lord through the prophet, saying:
- 23 "Behold, the virgin shall be with child, and bear a Son, and they shall call His name Immanuel," which is translated, "God with us."

Dan 3:25

"Look!" he answered, "I see four men loose, walking in the midst of the fire; and they are not hurt, and the form of the fourth is like the Son of God."

Matt 2:15

and was there until the death of Herod, that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the Lord through the prophet, saying, "Out of Egypt I called My Son."

Matt 22:42-45

- 42 saying, "What do you think about the Christ? Whose Son is He?" They said to Him, "The Son of David."
- 43 He said to them, "How then does David in the Spirit call Him `Lord,' saying:
- 14 The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool" '?
- 45 "If David then calls Him `Lord,' how is He his Son?"

Heb 1:8

But <u>to the Son</u> He says: "<u>Your throne, O God</u>, is forever and ever; a scepter of righteousness is the scepter of Your Kingdom.

John 3:16

"For God so loved the world that He gave His only begotten Son, that whoever believes in Him should not perish but have everlasting life.

John 3:18

"He who believes in Him is not condemned; but he who does not believe is condemned already, because he has not believed in the name of the only begotten Son of God.

l Jn 4:9

In this the love of God was manifested toward us, that God has sent His only begotten Son into the world, that we might live through Him.

Matt 11:27

"All things have been delivered to Me by My Father, and no one knows the Son except the Father. Nor does anyone know the Father except the Son, and the one to whom the Son wills to reveal Him.

Matt 8:29

And suddenly they cried out, saying, "What have we to do with You, Jesus, You Son of God? Have You come here to torment us before the time?"

Mark 5:6-7

- 6 When he <u>saw Jesus</u> from afar, he ran and <u>worshiped Him</u>.
- 7 And he cried out with a loud voice and said, "What have I to do with You, Jesus, Son of the Most High God? I implore You by God that You do not torment me."

Luke 8:28

When he saw Jesus, he cried out, fell down before Him, and with a loud voice said, "What have I to do with You, Jesus, Son of the Most High God? I beg You, do not torment me!"

John 5:17-18

- 17 But Jesus answered them, "My Father has been working until now, and I have been working."
- 18 Therefore the Jews sought all the more to kill Him, because He not only broke the Sabbath, but also said that <u>God was His Father, making Himself equal with</u> <u>God</u>.

John 5:21-23

- 21 "For as the Father raises the dead and gives life to them, even so the Son gives life to whom He will.
- 22 "For the Father judges no one, but has committed all judgment to the Son,
- 23 "that all should honor the Son just as they honor the Father. He who does not honor the Son does not honor the Father who sent Him.

l Jn 5:20

And we know that the Son of God has come and has given us an understanding, that we may know Him who is true; and we are in Him who is true, in His Son Jesus Christ. This is the true God and eternal life.

Speaks to the second coming of Jesus

Ps 2:7-12

- 7 "I will declare the decree: the LORD has said to Me, 'You are My Son, today I have begotten You.
- 8 Ask of Me, and I will give You the nations for Your inheritance, and the ends of the earth for Your possession.
- 9 You shall break them with a rod of iron; you shall dash them to pieces like a potter's vessel."
- 10 Now therefore, be wise, O kings; be instructed, you judges of the earth.
- 11 Serve the LORD with fear, and rejoice with trembling.
- 12 Kiss the Son, lest He be angry, and you perish in the way, when His wrath is kindled but a little. Blessed are all those who put their trust in Him.

Ezek 21:9-11

- 9 "Son of man, prophesy and say, 'Thus says the LORD! "Say: 'A sword, a sword is sharpened and also polished!
- 10 Sharpened to make a dreadful slaughter, Polished to flash like lightning! Should we then make mirth? It despises the scepter of My Son, as it does all wood.
- 11 And He has given it to be polished, that it may be handled; this sword is sharpened, and it is polished to be given into the hand of the slayer.'

Dan 7:13

"I was watching in the night visions, and behold, One like the Son of Man, coming with the clouds of heaven! He came to the Ancient of Days, and they brought Him near before Him.

SON OF MAN: Divinity of Jesus

Gen 3:15

And I will put enmity between you and the woman, and between your seed and her Seed; he shall bruise your head, and you shall bruise His heel."

Deut 18:15-19

- 15 "The LORD your God will raise up for you a Prophet like me from your midst, from your brethren. Him you shall hear,
- 16 "according to all you desired of the LORD your God in Horeb in the day of the assembly, saying, `Let me not hear again the voice of the LORD my God, nor let me see this great fire anymore, lest I die.'
- 17 "And the LORD said to me: `What they have spoken is good.
- 18 `I will raise up for them a Prophet like you from among their brethren, and will put My words in His mouth, and He shall speak to them all that I command Him.
- 19 `And it shall be that whoever will not hear My words, which He speaks in My name, I will require it of him.

Ps 22:22

I will declare Your name to My brethren; in the midst of the assembly I will praise You.

lsa 8:18

Here am I and the children whom the LORD has given me! We are for signs and wonders in Israel from the LORD of hosts, who dwells in Mount Zion.

lsa 9:6

For unto us a Child is born, unto us a <u>Son</u> is given; and the government will be upon His shoulder. And His name will be called wonderful, Counselor, <u>Mighty God</u>, everlasting Father, Prince of Peace.

Dan 7:13

"I was watching in the night visions, and behold, One like the <u>Son of Man</u>, <u>coming with</u> <u>the clouds of heaven</u>! He came to the Ancient of Days, and they brought Him near before Him.

Luke 21:27

And then shall they see the <u>Son of man</u> coming in a cloud with power and great glory.

Matthew 24:30

And then shall appear the sign of the <u>Son of man</u> in heaven: and then shall all the tribes of the earth mourn, and they shall see the <u>Son of man</u> coming in the clouds of heaven with power and great glory.

Mark 13:26

And then shall they see the <u>Son of man</u> coming in the clouds with great power and glory.

Matt 26:64

Jesus said to him, "It is as you said. Nevertheless, I say to you, hereafter you will see the <u>Son of Man</u> sitting at the right hand of the Power, and coming on the clouds of heaven."

Mark 14:62

And Jesus said, I am: and ye shall see the <u>Son of man</u> sitting on the right hand of power, and coming in the clouds of heaven.

Matt 16:27-28

- 27 "For the <u>Son of Man</u> will come in the glory of His Father with His angels, and then He will reward each according to his works.
- 28 "Assuredly, I say to you, there are some standing here who shall not taste death till they see the Son of Man coming in His kingdom."

Matthew 24:27

For as the lightning cometh out of the east, and shineth even unto the west; so shall also the coming of the <u>Son of man</u> be.

Matthew 24:37

But as the days of Noe [were], so shall also the coming of the <u>Son of man</u> be.

Matthew 24:39

And knew not until the flood came, and took them all away; so shall also the coming of the <u>Son of man</u> be.

Matthew 24:44

Therefore be ye also ready: for in such an hour as ye think not the <u>Son of man</u> cometh.

Matthew 25:13

Watch therefore, for ye know neither the day nor the hour wherein the <u>Son of man</u> cometh.

Matthew 25:31

When the <u>Son of man</u> shall come in his glory, and all the holy angels with him, then shall he sit upon the throne of his glory:

Matthew 8:20

And Jesus saith unto him, The foxes have holes, and the birds of the air [have] nests; but the <u>Son of man</u> hath not where to lay [his] head.

Matthew 9:6

But that ye may know that the <u>Son of man</u> hath power on earth to forgive sins, (then saith he to the sick of the palsy,) Arise, take up thy bed, and go unto thine house.

Matthew 10:23

But when they persecute you in this city, flee ye into another: for verily I say unto you, Ye shall not have gone over the cities of Israel, till the <u>Son</u> of <u>man</u> be come.

Matthew 11:19 The <u>Son of man</u> came eating and drinking, and they say, Behold a man gluttonous, and a winebibber, a friend of publicans and sinners. But wisdom is justified of her children.

Matthew 12:8 For the <u>Son of man</u> is Lord even of the sabbath day.

Matthew 12:32

And whosoever speaketh a word against the <u>Son of man</u>, it shall be forgiven him: but whosoever speaketh against the Holy Ghost, it shall not be forgiven him, neither in this world, neither in the [world] to come.

Matthew 12:40

For as Jonas was three days and three nights in the whale's belly; so shall the <u>Son of</u> <u>man</u> be three days and three nights in the heart of the earth.

Matthew 13:37 He answered and said unto them, He that soweth the good seed is the <u>Son of man</u>;

Matthew 13:41 The <u>Son of man</u> shall send forth his angels, and they shall gather out of his kingdom all things that offend, and them which do iniquity;

Matthew 16:13

When Jesus came into the coasts of Caesarea Philippi, he asked his disciples, saying, Whom do men say that I the <u>Son of man</u> am?

Matthew 17:9

And as they came down from the mountain, Jesus charged them, saying, Tell the vision to no man, until the <u>Son of man</u> be risen again from the dead.

Matthew 17:12

But I say unto you, That Elias is come already, and they knew him not, but have done unto him whatsoever they listed. Likewise shall also the <u>Son of man</u> suffer of them.

Matthew 17:22 And while they abode in Galilee, Jesus said unto them, The <u>Son of man</u> shall be betrayed into the hands of men:

Matt 18:11

"For the <u>Son of Man</u> has come to save that which was lost.

Matthew 19:28

And Jesus said unto them, Verily I say unto you, That ye which have followed me, in the regeneration when the <u>Son of man</u> shall sit in the throne of his glory, ye also shall sit upon twelve thrones, judging the twelve tribes of Israel.

Matthew 20:18

Behold, we go up to Jerusalem; and the <u>Son of man</u> shall be betrayed unto the chief priests and unto the scribes, and they shall condemn him to death,

Matt 20:28

"just as the <u>Son of Man</u> did not come to be served, but to serve, and to give His life a ransom for many."

Matt 26:2

"You know that after two days is the Passover, and the <u>Son of Man</u> will be delivered up to be crucified."

Matthew 26:24

The <u>Son of man</u> goeth as it is written of him: but woe unto that man by whom the <u>Son</u> <u>of man</u> is betrayed! it had been good for that man if he had not been born.

Matthew 26:45

Then cometh he to his disciples, and saith unto them, Sleep on now, and take [your] rest: behold, the hour is at hand, and the <u>Son of</u> <u>man</u> is betrayed into the hands of sinners.

Mark 2:10

But that ye may know that the <u>Son of man</u> hath power on earth to forgive sins, (he saith to the sick of the palsy,)

Mark 2:28

"Therefore the Son of Man is also Lord of the Sabbath."

Mark 8:31

And he began to teach them, that the <u>Son of man</u> must suffer many things, and be rejected of the elders, and [of] the chief priests, and scribes, and be killed, and after three days rise again.

Mark 8:38

Whosoever therefore shall be ashamed of me and of my words in this adulterous and sinful generation; of him also shall the <u>Son of man</u> be ashamed, when he cometh in the glory of his Father with the holy angels.

Mark 9:9

Now as they came down from the mountain, He commanded them that they should tell no one the things they had seen, till the <u>Son of Man</u> had risen from the dead.

Mark 9:12

Then He answered and told them, "Indeed, Elijah is coming first and restores all things. And how is it written concerning the <u>Son of Man</u>, that He must suffer many things and be treated with contempt?

Mark 9:31

For he taught his disciples, and said unto them, The <u>Son of man</u> is delivered into the hands of men, and they shall kill him; and after that he is killed, he shall rise the third day.

Mark 10:33

"Behold, we are going up to Jerusalem, and the <u>Son of Man</u> will be betrayed to the chief priests and to the scribes; and they will condemn Him to death and deliver Him to the Gentiles;

Mark 10:45

"For even the <u>Son of Man</u> did not come to be served, but to serve, and to give His life a ransom for many."

Mark 13:34

[For the <u>Son of man</u> is] as a man taking a far journey, who left his house, and gave authority to his servants, and to every man his work, and commanded the porter to watch.

Mark 14:21

"The <u>Son of Man</u> indeed goes just as it is written of Him, but woe to that man by whom the Son of Man is betrayed! It would have been good for that man if he had never been born."

Mark 14:41

And he cometh the third time, and saith unto them, Sleep on now, and take [your] rest: it is enough, the hour is come; behold, the Son of man is betrayed into the hands of sinners.

Luke 5:24

"But that you may know that the <u>Son of Man</u> has power on earth to forgive sins"-- He said to the man who was paralyzed, "I say to you, arise, take up your bed, and go to your house."

Luke 6:5

And he said unto them, That the <u>Son of man</u> is Lord also of the sabbath.

Luke 6:22

Blessed are ye, when men shall hate you, and when they shall separate you [from their company], and shall reproach [you], and cast out your name as evil, for the <u>Son of</u> <u>man</u>'s sake.

Luke 7:34

The <u>Son of man</u> is come eating and drinking; and ye say, Behold a gluttonous man, and a winebibber, a friend of publicans and sinners!

Luke 9:22

Saying, The <u>Son of man</u> must suffer many things, and be rejected of the elders and chief priests and scribes, and be slain, and be raised the third day.

Luke 9:26

For whosoever shall be ashamed of me and of my words, of him shall the <u>Son of man</u> be ashamed, when he shall come in his own glory, and [in his] Father's, and of the holy angels.

Luke 9:43-44

- 43 And they were all <u>amazed at the majesty of God</u>. But while everyone marveled at all the things which Jesus did, He said to His disciples,
- 44 "Let these words sink down into your ears, for the <u>Son of Man</u> is about to be betrayed into the hands of men."

Luke 9:56

For the <u>Son of man</u> is not come to destroy men's lives, but to save [them]. And they went to another village.

Luke 9:58

And Jesus said unto him, Foxes have holes, and birds of the air [have] nests; but the <u>Son of man</u> hath not where to lay [his] head.

Luke 11:30

For as Jonas was a sign unto the Ninevites, so shall also the <u>Son of man</u> be to this generation.

Luke 12:8

Also I say unto you, Whosoever shall confess me before men, him shall the <u>Son of man</u> also confess before the angels of God:

Luke 12:10

And whosoever shall speak a word against the <u>Son of man</u>, it shall be forgiven him: but unto him that blasphemeth against the Holy Ghost it shall not be forgiven.

Luke 12:40

Be ye therefore ready also: for the <u>Son of man</u> cometh at an hour when ye think not.

Luke 17:22

Then He said to the disciples, "The days will come when you will desire to see one of the days of the <u>Son of Man</u>, and you will not see it.

Luke 17:24

"For as the lightning that flashes out of one part under heaven shines to the other part under heaven, so also the <u>Son of Man</u> will be in His day.

Luke 17:26

And as it was in the days of Noe, so shall it be also in the days of the Son of man.

Luke 17:30

Even thus shall it be in the day when the <u>Son of man</u> is revealed.

Luke 18:8

I tell you that he will avenge them speedily. Nevertheless when the <u>Son of man</u> cometh, shall he find faith on the earth?

Luke 18:31

Then He took the twelve aside and said to them, "Behold, we are going up to Jerusalem, and all things that are written by the prophets concerning the <u>Son of Man</u> will be accomplished.

Luke 19:10 "for the <u>Son of Man</u> has come to seek and to save that which was lost."

Luke 21:36

"Watch therefore, and pray always that you may be counted worthy to escape all these things that will come to pass, and to stand before the <u>Son of Man</u>."

Luke 22:22

And truly the <u>Son of man</u> goeth, as it was determined: but woe unto that man by whom he is betrayed!

Luke 22:48 But Jesus said to him, "Judas, are you betraying the <u>Son of Man</u> with a kiss?"

Luke 22:69 "Hereafter the <u>Son of Man</u> will sit on the right hand of the power of God."

Luke 24:7

Saying, The <u>Son of man</u> must be delivered into the hands of sinful men, and be crucified, and the third day rise again.

John 1:51

And he saith unto him, Verily, verily, I say unto you, Hereafter ye shall see heaven open, and the angels of God ascending and descending upon the <u>Son of man</u>.

John 3:13-14

- 13 And no man hath ascended up to heaven, but he that came down from heaven, [even] the <u>Son of man</u> which is in heaven.
- 14 And as Moses lifted up the serpent in the wilderness, even so must the <u>Son of</u> <u>man</u> be lifted up:

John 5:27

"and has given Him authority to execute judgment also, because He is the Son of Man.

John 6:27

Labour not for the meat which perisheth, but for that meat which endureth unto everlasting life, which the <u>Son of man</u> shall give unto you: for him hath God the Father sealed.

John 6:53

Then Jesus said unto them, Verily, verily, I say unto you, Except ye eat the flesh of the <u>Son of man</u>, and drink his blood, ye have no life in you.

John 6:62

[What] and if ye shall see the Son of man ascend up where he was before?

John 8:28

Then said Jesus unto them, When ye have lifted up the <u>Son of man</u>, then shall ye know that I am [he], and [that] I do nothing of myself; but as my Father hath taught me, I speak these things.

John 12:23

And Jesus answered them, saying, The hour is come, that the <u>Son of man</u> should be glorified.

John 12:34

The people answered Him, "We have heard from the law that the Christ remains forever; and how can You say, `The <u>Son of Man</u> must be lifted up'? <u>Who is this Son of Man?</u>"

John 13:31

So, when he had gone out, Jesus said, "Now the <u>Son of Man</u> is glorified, and God is glorified in Him.

Acts 7:56

and said, "Look! I see the heavens opened and the <u>Son of Man</u> standing at the right hand of God!"

Hebrews 2:6

But one in a certain place testified, saying, What is man, that thou art mindful of him? or the <u>son of man</u>, that thou visitest him?

Rev 1:13

and in the midst of the seven lampstands One like the <u>Son of Man</u>, clothed with a garment down to the feet and girded about the chest with a golden band.

Rev 14:14

Then I looked, and behold, a white cloud, and on the cloud sat One like the <u>Son of</u> <u>Man</u>, having on His head a golden crown, and in His hand a sharp sickle.

ETERNITY OF JESUS

Ps 102:24-27

- I said, "O my God, do not take me away in the midst of my days; your years are throughout all generations.
- 25 Of old <u>You laid the foundation of the earth, and the heavens are the work of</u> <u>Your hands</u>.
- 26 They will perish, but You will endure; yes, they will all grow old like a garment; like a cloak You will change them, and they will be changed.
- 27 But You are the same, and Your years will have no end.

Prov 8:22-25

- 22 "The LORD possessed me at the beginning of His way, before His works of old.
- 23 <u>I have been established from everlasting</u>, from the beginning, <u>before there was</u> <u>ever an earth</u>.
- 24 When there were no depths I was brought forth, when there were no fountains abounding with water.
- 25 Before the mountains were settled, before the hills, I was brought forth;

lsa 9:6

For unto us a Child is born, unto us a Son is given; and the government will be upon His shoulder. And His name will be called wonderful, Counselor, Mighty God, everlasting Father, Prince of Peace.

Micah 5:2

"But you, <u>Bethlehem Ephrathah</u>, though you are little among the thousands of Judah, yet <u>out of you shall come forth to Me the One to be Ruler in Israel</u>, whose goings forth are from of old, from everlasting."

Mark 12:36-37

- 36 "For David himself said by the Holy Spirit: `The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool." '
- 37 "Therefore David himself calls Him `Lord'; how is He then his Son?" And the common people heard Him gladly.

John 1:1-4, 15

- 1 <u>In the beginning was the Word</u>, and the <u>Word was with God</u>, and the <u>Word was</u> <u>God</u>.
- 2 <u>He was in the beginning with God</u>.
- 3 <u>All things were made through Him</u>, and <u>without Him nothing was made that was</u> <u>made</u>.
- 4 In Him was life, and the life was the light of men.
- 15 John bore witness of Him and cried out, saying, "This was He of whom I said, <u>`He who comes after me is preferred before me, for He was before me</u>."

John 3:13

"No one has ascended to heaven but He who came down from heaven, that is, the Son of Man who is in heaven.

John 6:62

"What then if you should see the Son of Man ascend where He was before?

John 8:23

And He said to them, "You are from beneath; <u>I am from above</u>. You are of this world; I am not of this world.

John 8:58

Jesus said to them, "Most assuredly, I say to you, before Abraham was, I AM."

Exod 3:14

And God said to Moses, "<u>I AM WHO I AM</u>." And He said, "Thus you shall say to the children of Israel, '<u>I AM</u> has sent me to you."

John 12:41

These things Isaiah said when he saw His glory and spoke of Him.

John 17:5

"And now, O Father, glorify Me together with Yourself, with the glory which I had with You before the world was.

John 17:24-25

- 24 "Father, I desire that they also whom You gave Me may be with Me where I am, that they may behold My glory which You have given Me; for You loved Me before the foundation of the world.
- 25 "O righteous Father! The world has not known You, but I have known You; and these have known that You sent Me.

Eph 3:21

to Him be glory in the church by Christ Jesus to all generations, forever and ever. Amen.

Eph 4:10

He who descended is also the One who ascended far above all the heavens, that He might fill all things.)

Col 1:17

And He is before all things, and in Him all things consist.

2 Tim 1:9

who has saved us and called us with a holy calling, not according to our works, but according to His own purpose and grace which was given to us in Christ Jesus before time began,

Heb 1:8-12

- 8 But to the Son He says: "Your throne, O God, is forever and ever; a scepter of righteousness is the scepter of Your Kingdom.
- 9 You have loved righteousness and hated lawlessness; therefore God, Your God, has anointed You with the oil of gladness more than Your companions."
- 10 And: "You, Lord, in the beginning laid the foundation of the earth, and the heavens are the work of Your hands.
- 11 They will perish, but You remain; and they will all grow old like a garment;
- 12 Like a cloak You will fold them up, and they will be changed. But You are the same, and Your years will not fail."

Heb 6:20

where the forerunner has entered for us, even Jesus, having become High Priest forever according to the order of Melchizedek.

Heb 7:16

who has come, not according to the law of a fleshly commandment, but according to the power of an endless life.

Heb 7:24-25

- But He, because He continues forever, has an unchangeable priesthood.
- 25 Therefore He is also able to save to the uttermost those who come to God through Him, since He always lives to make intercession for them.

Heb 13:8

Jesus Christ is the same yesterday, today, and forever.

1 Pet 1:20

He indeed was foreordained before the foundation of the world, but was manifest in these last times for you

I Jn 1:1-2

- 1 That which was from the beginning, which we have heard, which we have seen with our eyes, which we have looked upon, and our hands have handled, concerning the Word of life--
- 2 the life was manifested, and we have seen, and bear witness, and declare to you that eternal life which was with the Father and was manifested to us--

l Jn 2:13-14

- 13 I write to you, fathers, because you have known Him who is from the beginning. I write to you, young men, because you have overcome the wicked one. I write to you, little children, because you have known the Father.
- 14 I have written to you, fathers, because you have known Him who is from the beginning. I have written to you, young men, because you are strong, and the word of God abides in you, and you have overcome the wicked one.

Rev 1:8

"I am the Alpha and the Omega, the Beginning and the End," says the Lord, "who is and who was and who is to come, the Almighty."

Rev 1:11

saying, "I am the Alpha and the Omega, the First and the Last," and, "What you see, write in a book and send it to the seven churches which are in Asia: to Ephesus, to Smyrna, to Pergamos, to Thyatira, to Sardis, to Philadelphia, and to Laodicea."

Rev 1:17-18

- 17 And when I saw Him, I fell at His feet as dead. But He laid His right hand on me, saying to me, "Do not be afraid; I am the First and the Last.
- 18 "I am He who lives, and was dead, and behold, I am alive forevermore. Amen. And I have the keys of Hades and of Death.

Rev 5:13-14

- 13 And every creature which is in heaven and on the earth and under the earth and such as are in the sea, and all that are in them, I heard saying: "Blessing and honor and glory and power be to Him who sits on the throne, and to the Lamb, forever and ever!"
- 14 Then the four living creatures said, "Amen!" And the twenty-four elders fell down and worshiped Him who lives forever and ever.

EXALTATION OF JESUS

Ps 2:8-9

- 8 Ask of Me, and I will give You the nations for Your inheritance, and the ends of the earth for Your possession.
- 9 You shall break them with a rod of iron; you shall dash them to pieces like a potter's vessel."

Ps 24:7-10

- 7 Lift up your heads, O you gates! And be lifted up, you everlasting doors! And the King of glory shall come in.
- 8 Who is this King of glory? The LORD strong and mighty, the LORD mighty in battle.
- 9 Lift up your heads, O you gates! Lift up, you everlasting doors! And the King of glory shall come in.
- 10 Who is this King of glory? The LORD of hosts, he is the King of glory. Selah

Ps 68:18

You have ascended on high, you have led captivity captive; you have received gifts among men, even from the rebellious, that the LORD God might dwell there.

Mark 16:19

So then, after the Lord had spoken to them, He was received up into heaven, and sat down at the right hand of God.

Luke 22:69

"Hereafter the Son of Man will sit on the right hand of the power of God."

Luke 24:26

"Ought not the Christ to have suffered these things and to enter into His glory?"

John 7:39

But this He spoke concerning the Spirit, whom those believing in Him would receive; for the Holy Spirit was not yet given, because Jesus was not yet glorified.

John 13:31-32

- 31 So, when he had gone out, Jesus said, "Now the Son of Man is glorified, and God is glorified in Him.
- 32 "If God is glorified in Him, God will also glorify Him in Himself, and glorify Him immediately.

John 17:5

"And now, O Father, glorify Me together with Yourself, with the glory which I had with You before the world was.

Acts 2:33-34

- 33 "Therefore being exalted to the right hand of God, and having received from the Father the promise of the Holy Spirit, He poured out this which you now see and hear.
- 34 "For David did not ascend into the heavens, but he says himself: `The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand,

Acts 3:20-21

- 20 "and that He may send Jesus Christ, who was preached to you before,
- 21 "whom heaven must receive until the times of restoration of all things, which God has spoken by the mouth of all His holy prophets since the world began.

Acts 5:31

"Him God has exalted to His right hand to be Prince and Savior, to give repentance to Israel and forgiveness of sins.

Acts 7:55-56

- 55 But he, being full of the Holy Spirit, gazed into heaven and saw the glory of God, and Jesus standing at the right hand of God,
- 56 and said, "Look! I see the heavens opened and the Son of Man standing at the right hand of God!"

Rom 8:17

and if children, then heirs-- heirs of God and joint heirs with Christ, if indeed we suffer with Him, that we may also be glorified together.

Rom 8:34

Who is he who condemns? It is Christ who died, and furthermore is also risen, who is even at the right hand of God, who also makes intercession for us.

Eph 1:20

which He worked in Christ when He raised Him from the dead and seated Him at His right hand in the heavenly places,

Eph 4:8

Therefore He says: "When He ascended on high, he led captivity captive, and gave gifts to men."

Eph 4:10

He who descended is also the One who ascended far above all the heavens, that He might fill all things.)

Phil 2:9-11

9 Therefore God also has highly exalted Him and given Him the name which is above every name,

- 10 that at the name of Jesus every knee should bow, of those in heaven, and of those on earth, and of those under the earth,
- 11 and that every tongue should confess that Jesus Christ is Lord, to the glory of God the Father.

Col 2:15

Having disarmed principalities and powers, He made a public spectacle of them, triumphing over them in it.

Col 3:1

If then you were raised with Christ, seek those things which are above, where Christ is, sitting at the right hand of God.

1 Tim 3:16

And without controversy great is the mystery of godliness: God was manifested in the flesh, justified in the Spirit, seen by angels, preached among the Gentiles, believed on in the world, received up in glory.

Heb 1:3

who being the brightness of His glory and the express image of His person, and upholding all things by the word of His power, when He had by Himself purged our sins, sat down at the right hand of the Majesty on high,

Heb 2:9

But we see Jesus, who was made a little lower than the angels, for the suffering of death crowned with glory and honor, that He, by the grace of God, might taste death for everyone.

Heb 4:10

For he who has entered His rest has himself also ceased from his works as God did from His.

Heb 4:14

Seeing then that we have a great High Priest who has passed through the heavens, Jesus the Son of God, let us hold fast our confession.

Heb 6:20

where the forerunner has entered for us, even Jesus, having become High Priest forever according to the order of Melchizedek.

Heb 7:26

For such a High Priest was fitting for us, who is holy, harmless, undefiled, separate from sinners, and has become higher than the heavens;

Heb 8:1

Now this is the main point of the things we are saying: We have such a High Priest, who is seated at the right hand of the throne of the Majesty in the heavens,

Heb 9:12

Not with the blood of goats and calves, but with His own blood He entered the Most Holy Place once for all, having obtained eternal redemption.

Heb 9:24

For Christ has not entered the holy places made with hands, which are copies of the true, but into heaven itself, now to appear in the presence of God for us;

Heb 10:12-13

- 12 But this Man, after He had offered one sacrifice for sins forever, sat down at the right hand of God,
- 13 from that time waiting till His enemies are made His footstool.

Heb 12:2

looking unto Jesus, the author and finisher of our faith, who for the joy that was set before Him endured the cross, despising the shame, and has sat down at the right hand of the throne of God.

1 Pet 3:22

who has gone into heaven and is at the right hand of God, angels and authorities and powers having been made subject to Him.

HOLINESS OF JESUS

Ps 45:7

You love righteousness and hate wickedness; therefore God, Your God, has anointed You with the oil of gladness more than Your companions.

Ps 89:19

Then You spoke in a vision to Your holy one, and said: "I have given help to one who is mighty; I have exalted one chosen from the people.

Isa 11:4-5

- 4 But with righteousness He shall judge the poor, and decide with equity for the meek of the earth; he shall strike the earth with the rod of His mouth, and with the breath of His lips He shall slay the wicked.
- 5 Righteousness shall be the belt of His loins, and faithfulness the belt of His waist.

lsa 32:1

Behold, a king will reign in righteousness, and princes will rule with justice.

lsa 42:21

The LORD is well pleased for His righteousness' sake; he will exalt the law and make it honorable.

lsa 49:7

Thus says the LORD, the Redeemer of Israel, their Holy One, to Him whom man despises, to Him whom the nation abhors, to the Servant of rulers: "Kings shall see and arise, princes also shall worship, because of the LORD who is faithful, the Holy One of Israel; and He has chosen You."

lsa 50:5

The Lord GOD has opened My ear; and I was not rebellious, nor did I turn away.

lsa 53:9

And they made His grave with the wicked-- but with the rich at His death, because He had done no violence, nor was any deceit in His mouth.

lsa 59:17

For He put on righteousness as a breastplate, and a helmet of salvation on His head; he put on the garments of vengeance for clothing, and was clad with zeal as a cloak.

Jer 23:5

"Behold, the days are coming," says the LORD, "That I will raise to David a Branch of righteousness; a King shall reign and prosper, and execute judgment and righteousness in the earth.

Zech 9:9

"Rejoice greatly, O daughter of Zion! Shout, O daughter of Jerusalem! Behold, your King is coming to you; he is just and having salvation, lowly and riding on a donkey, a colt, the foal of a donkey.

Mark 1:24

saying, "Let us alone! What have we to do with You, Jesus of Nazareth? Did You come to destroy us? I know who You are-- the Holy One of God!"

Luke 1:35

And the angel answered and said to her, "The Holy Spirit will come upon you, and the power of the Highest will overshadow you; therefore, also, that Holy One who is to be born will be called the Son of God.

Luke 4:34

saying, "Let us alone! What have we to do with You, Jesus of Nazareth? Did You come to destroy us? I know who You are-- the Holy One of God!"

Luke 23:40-41

- 40 But the other, answering, rebuked him, saying, "Do you not even fear God, seeing you are under the same condemnation?
- 41 "And we indeed justly, for we receive the due reward of our deeds; but this Man has done nothing wrong."

Luke 23:47

So when the centurion saw what had happened, he glorified God, saying, "Certainly this was a righteous Man!"

John 5:30

"I can of Myself do nothing. As I hear, I judge; and My judgment is righteous, because I do not seek My own will but the will of the Father who sent Me.

John 7:18

"He who speaks from himself seeks his own glory; but He who seeks the glory of the One who sent Him is true, and no unrighteousness is in Him.

John 8:46

"Which of you convicts Me of sin? And if I tell the truth, why do you not believe Me?

John 14:30

"I will no longer talk much with you, for the ruler of this world is coming, and he has nothing in Me.

John 16:10

"of righteousness, because I go to My Father and you see Me no more;

Acts 3:14

"But you denied the Holy One and the Just, and asked for a murderer to be granted to you,

Acts 4:27

"For truly against Your holy Servant Jesus, whom You anointed, both Herod and Pontius Pilate, with the Gentiles and the people of Israel, were gathered together

Acts 4:30

"by stretching out Your hand to heal, and that signs and wonders may be done through the name of Your holy Servant Jesus."

Acts 13:28

"And though they found no cause for death in Him, they asked Pilate that He should be put to death.

Acts 13:35

"Therefore He also says in another Psalm: `You will not allow Your Holy One to see corruption.'

2 Cor 4:4

whose minds the god of this age has blinded, who do not believe, lest the light of the gospel of the glory of Christ, who is the image of God, should shine on them.

2 Cor 5:21

For He made Him who knew no sin to be sin for us, that we might become the righteousness of God in Him.

Heb 1:9

You have loved righteousness and hated lawlessness; therefore God, Your God, has anointed You with the oil of gladness more than Your companions."

Heb 4:15

For we do not have a High Priest who cannot sympathize with our weaknesses, but was in all points tempted as we are, yet without sin.

Heb 7:26-28

- 26 For such a High Priest was fitting for us, who is holy, harmless, undefiled, separate from sinners, and has become higher than the heavens;
- 27 who does not need daily, as those high priests, to offer up sacrifices, first for His own sins and then for the people's, for this He did once for all when He offered up Himself.
- 28 For the law appoints as high priests men who have weakness, but the word of the oath, which came after the law, appoints the Son who has been perfected forever.

Heb 9:14

how much more shall the blood of Christ, who through the eternal Spirit offered Himself without spot to God, cleanse your conscience from dead works to serve the living God?

1 Pet 1:19

but with the precious blood of Christ, as of a lamb without blemish and without spot.

1 Pet 2:22

"Who committed no sin, nor was deceit found in His mouth";

I Jn 2:29

If you know that He is righteous, you know that everyone who practices righteousness is born of Him.

l Jn 3:5

And you know that He was manifested to take away our sins, and in Him there is no sin.

Rev 3:7

"And to the angel of the church in Philadelphia write, `These things says He who is holy, He who is true, "He who has the key of David, He who opens and no one shuts, and shuts and no one opens":

SON OF DAVID

Matt 20:30-31

- 30 And behold, two blind men sitting by the road, when they heard that Jesus was passing by, cried out, saying, "Have mercy on us, O Lord, Son of David!"
- 31 Then the multitude warned them that they should be quiet; but they cried out all the more, saying, "Have mercy on us, O Lord, Son of David!"

Matt 21:9

Then the multitudes who went before and those who followed cried out, saying: "Hosanna to the Son of David! `Blessed is He who comes in the name of the Lord!' Hosanna in the highest!"

Luke 2:11-14

- 11 "For there is born to you this day in the city of David a Savior, who is Christ the Lord.
- 12 "And this will be the sign to you: You will find a Babe wrapped in swaddling cloths, lying in a manger."
- 13 And suddenly there was with the angel a multitude of the heavenly host praising God and saying:
- 14 "Glory to God in the highest, and on earth peace, goodwill toward men!"

John 1:14

And the Word became flesh and dwelt among us, and we beheld His glory, the glory as of the only begotten of the Father, full of grace and truth.

Acts 17:31

"because He has appointed a day on which He will judge the world in righteousness by the Man whom He has ordained. He has given assurance of this to all by raising Him from the dead."

HUMANITY OF JESUS

Mark 14:34

Then He said to them, "My soul is exceedingly sorrowful, even to death. Stay here and watch."

Mark 14:42

"Rise up, let us go. See, My betrayer is at hand."

Gal 4:4

But when the fullness of the time had come, God sent forth His Son, born of a woman, born under the law,

Phil 2:7-8

- 7 but made Himself of no reputation, taking the form of a bondservant, and coming in the likeness of men.
- 8 And being found in appearance as a man, He humbled Himself and became obedient to the point of death, even the death of the cross.

1 Tim 2:5

For there is one God and one Mediator between God and men, the Man Christ Jesus,

Heb 2:9-10

- 9 But we see Jesus, who was made a little lower than the angels, for the suffering of death crowned with glory and honor, that He, by the grace of God, might taste death for everyone.
- 10 For it was fitting for Him, for whom are all things and by whom are all things, in bringing many sons to glory, to make the captain of their salvation perfect through sufferings.

Heb 2:14-18

- 14 Inasmuch then as the children have partaken of flesh and blood, He Himself likewise shared in the same, that through death He might destroy him who had the power of death, that is, the devil,
- 15 and release those who through fear of death were all their lifetime subject to bondage.

- 16 For indeed He does not give aid to angels, but He does give aid to the seed of Abraham.
- 17 Therefore, in all things He had to be made like His brethren, that He might be a merciful and faithful High Priest in things pertaining to God, to make propitiation for the sins of the people.
- 18 For in that He Himself has suffered, being tempted, He is able to aid those who are tempted.

Heb 10:12

But this Man, after He had offered one sacrifice for sins forever, sat down at the right hand of God,

l Jn 4:2-3

- 2 By this you know the Spirit of God: Every spirit that confesses that Jesus Christ has come in the flesh is of God,
- 3 and every spirit that does not confess that Jesus Christ has come in the flesh is not of God. And this is the spirit of the Antichrist, which you have heard was coming, and is now already in the world.

ll Jn 1:7

For many deceivers have gone out into the world who do not confess Jesus Christ as coming in the flesh. This is a deceiver and an antichrist.

Matt 26:26-28

- And as they were eating, Jesus took bread, blessed and broke it, and gave it to the disciples and said, "Take, eat; this is My body."
- 27 Then He took the cup, and gave thanks, and gave it to them, saying, "Drink from it, all of you.
- 28 "For this is My blood of the new covenant, which is shed for many for the remission of sins.

Matt 26:36-45

- 36 Then Jesus came with them to a place called Gethsemane, and said to the disciples, "Sit here while I go and pray over there."
- 37 And He took with Him Peter and the two sons of Zebedee, and He began to be sorrowful and deeply distressed.
- 38 Then He said to them, "My soul is exceedingly sorrowful, even to death. Stay here and watch with Me."
- 39 He went a little farther and fell on His face, and prayed, saying, "O My Father, if it is possible, let this cup pass from Me; nevertheless, not as I will, but as You will."
- 40 Then He came to the disciples and found them asleep, and said to Peter, "What? Could you not watch with Me one hour?
- 41 "Watch and pray, lest you enter into temptation. The spirit indeed is willing, but the flesh is weak."

- 42 Again, a second time, He went away and prayed, saying, "O My Father, if this cup cannot pass away from Me unless I drink it, Your will be done."
- 43 And He came and found them asleep again, for their eyes were heavy.
- 44 So He left them, went away again, and prayed the third time, saying the same words.
- 45 Then He came to His disciples and said to them, "Are you still sleeping and resting? Behold, the hour is at hand, and the Son of Man is being betrayed into the hands of sinners.

MESSIANIC SCRIPTURES

Gen 3:15

And I will put enmity between you and the woman, and between your seed and her Seed; he shall bruise your head, and you shall bruise His heel."

Gen 9:26

And he said: "Blessed be the LORD, the God of Shem, and may Canaan be his servant.

Gen 12:2-3

- 2 I will make you a great nation; I will bless you and make your name great; and you shall be a blessing.
- 3 I will bless those who bless you, and I will curse him who curses you; and in you all the families of the earth shall be blessed."

Gen 17:19

Then God said: "No, Sarah your wife shall bear you a son, and you shall call his name Isaac; I will establish My covenant with him for an everlasting covenant, and with his descendants after him.

Gen 22:18

"<u>In your seed</u> all the nations of the earth shall be blessed, because you have obeyed My voice."

Gen 25:23

And the LORD said to her: "Two nations are in your womb, two peoples shall be separated from your body; one people shall be stronger than the other, and the older shall serve the younger."

Gen 28:13

And behold, the LORD stood above it and said: "I am the LORD God of Abraham your father and the God of Isaac; the land on which you lie I will give to you and your descendants.

Gen 49:8-10

- 8 "Judah, you are he whom your brothers shall praise; your hand shall be on the neck of your enemies; your father's children shall bow down before you.
- 9 Judah is a lion's whelp; from the prey, my son, you have gone up. He bows down, he lies down as a lion; and as a lion, who shall rouse him?
- 10 The <u>scepter shall not depart from Judah</u>, nor a lawgiver from between his feet, <u>until Shiloh comes</u>; and to Him shall be the obedience of the people.

Deut 18:18

<u>'I will raise up for them a Prophet like you</u> from among their brethren, and will put My words in His mouth, and He shall speak to them all that I command Him.

2 Sam 7:12-16

- 12 "When your days are fulfilled and you rest with your fathers, I will set up your seed after you, who will come from your body, and I will establish his kingdom.
- 13 "He shall build a house for My name, and I will establish the throne of his kingdom forever.
- 14 "I will be his Father, and he shall be My son. If he commits iniquity, I will chasten him with the rod of men and with the blows of the sons of men.
- 15 "But My mercy shall not depart from him, as I took it from Saul, whom I removed from before you.
- 16 "And your house and your kingdom shall be established forever before you. Your throne shall be established forever.""

2 Sam 23:5

"ALTHOUGH my house is not so with God, yet He has made with me an everlasting covenant, ordered in all things and secure. For this is all my salvation and all my desire; will He not make it increase?

Ps 2:1-12

- 1 Why do the nations rage, and the people plot a vain thing?
- 2 The kings of the earth set themselves, and the rulers take counsel together, against the LORD and against His Anointed, saying,
- 3 "Let us break Their bonds in pieces and cast away Their cords from us."
- 4 He who sits in the heavens shall laugh; the LORD shall hold them in derision.
- 5 Then He shall speak to them in His wrath, and distress them in His deep displeasure:
- 6 "Yet I have set My King on My holy hill of Zion."
- 7 "I will declare the decree: the LORD has said to Me, 'You are My Son, today I have begotten You.
- 8 Ask of Me, and I will give You the nations for Your inheritance, and the ends of the earth for Your possession.
- 9 You shall break them with a rod of iron; you shall dash them to pieces like a potter's vessel."
- 10 Now therefore, be wise, O kings; be instructed, you judges of the earth.
- 11 Serve the LORD with fear, and rejoice with trembling.
- 12 Kiss the Son, lest He be angry, and you perish in the way, when His wrath is kindled but a little. Blessed are all those who put their trust in Him.

Ps 7:1-17

- 1 O LORD my God, in You I put my trust; save me from all those who persecute me; and deliver me,
- 2 Lest they tear me like a lion, rending me in pieces, while there is none to deliver.
- 3 O LORD my God, if I have done this: if there is iniquity in my hands,

- 4 If I have repaid evil to him who was at peace with me, or have plundered my enemy without cause,
- 5 Let the enemy pursue me and overtake me; yes, let him trample my life to the earth, and lay my honor in the dust. Selah
- 6 Arise, O LORD, in Your anger; lift Yourself up because of the rage of my enemies; rise up for me to the judgment You have commanded!
- 7 So the congregation of the peoples shall surround You; for their sakes, therefore, return on high.
- 8 The LORD shall judge the peoples; judge me, O LORD, according to my righteousness, and according to my integrity within me.
- 9 Oh, let the wickedness of the wicked come to an end, but establish the just; for the righteous God tests the hearts and minds.
- 10 My defense is of God, who saves the upright in heart.
- 11 God is a just judge, and God is angry with the wicked every day.
- 12 If he does not turn back, he will sharpen His sword; he bends His bow and makes it ready.
- 13 He also prepares for Himself instruments of death; he makes His arrows into fiery shafts.
- 14 Behold, the wicked brings forth iniquity; yes, he conceives trouble and brings forth falsehood.
- 15 He made a pit and dug it out, and has fallen into the ditch which he made.
- 16 His trouble shall return upon his own head, and his violent dealing shall come down on his own crown.
- 17 I will praise the LORD according to His righteousness, and will sing praise to the name of the LORD Most High.

Ps 9:1-20

- 1 I will praise You, O LORD, with my whole heart; I will tell of all Your marvelous works.
- 2 I will be glad and rejoice in You; I will sing praise to Your name, O Most High.
- 3 When my enemies turn back, they shall fall and perish at Your presence.
- 4 For You have maintained my right and my cause; you sat on the throne judging in righteousness.
- 5 You have rebuked the nations, you have destroyed the wicked; you have blotted out their name forever and ever.
- 6 O enemy, destructions are finished forever! And you have destroyed cities; even their memory has perished.
- 7 But the LORD shall endure forever; he has prepared His throne for judgment.
- 8 He shall judge the world in righteousness, and He shall administer judgment for the peoples in uprightness.
- 9 The LORD also will be a refuge for the oppressed, a refuge in times of trouble.
- 10 And those who know Your name will put their trust in You; for You, LORD, have not forsaken those who seek You.
- 11 Sing praises to the LORD, who dwells in Zion! Declare His deeds among the people.

- 12 When He avenges blood, He remembers them; he does not forget the cry of the humble.
- 13 Have mercy on me, O LORD! Consider my trouble from those who hate me, you who lift me up from the gates of death,
- 14 That I may tell of all Your praise in the gates of the daughter of Zion. I will rejoice in Your salvation.
- 15 The nations have sunk down in the pit which they made; in the net which they hid, their own foot is caught.
- 16 The LORD is known by the judgment He executes; the wicked is snared in the work of his own hands. Meditation. Selah
- 17 The wicked shall be turned into hell, and all the nations that forget God.
- 18 For the needy shall not always be forgotten; the expectation of the poor shall not perish forever.
- 19 Arise, O LORD, do not let man prevail; let the nations be judged in Your sight.
- 20 Put them in fear, O LORD, that the nations may know themselves to be but men. Selah

Ps 11:1-7

- 1 In the LORD I put my trust; how can you say to my soul, "Flee as a bird to your mountain"?
- 2 For look! The wicked bend their bow, they make ready their arrow on the string, that they may shoot secretly at the upright in heart.
- 3 If the foundations are destroyed, what can the righteous do?
- 4 The LORD is in His holy temple, the LORD'S throne is in heaven; his eyes behold, his eyelids test the sons of men.
- 5 The LORD tests the righteous, but the wicked and the one who loves violence His soul hates.
- 6 Upon the wicked He will rain coals; fire and brimstone and a burning wind shall be the portion of their cup.
- 7 For the LORD is righteous, he loves righteousness; his countenance beholds the upright.

Ps 16:7-11

- 7 I will bless the LORD who has given me counsel; my heart also instructs me in the night seasons.
- 8 I have set the LORD always before me; because He is at my right hand I shall not be moved.
- 9 Therefore my heart is glad, and my glory rejoices; my flesh also will rest in hope.
- 10 For You will not leave my soul in Sheol, nor will You allow Your Holy One to see corruption.
- 11 You will show me the path of life; in Your presence is fullness of joy; at Your right hand are pleasures forevermore.

Ps 22:1-31

1 My God, My God, why have You forsaken Me? Why are You so far from helping Me, and from the words of My groaning?

- 2 O My God, I cry in the daytime, but You do not hear; and in the night season, and am not silent.
- 3 But You are holy, enthroned in the praises of Israel.
- 4 Our fathers trusted in You; they trusted, and You delivered them.
- 5 They cried to You, and were delivered; they trusted in You, and were not ashamed.
- 6 But I am a worm, and no man; a reproach of men, and despised of the people.
- 7 All those who see Me ridicule Me; they shoot out the lip, they shake the head, saying,
- 8 "He trusted in the LORD, let Him rescue Him; let Him deliver Him, since He delights in Him!"
- 9 But You are He who took Me out of the womb; you made Me trust while on My mother's breasts.
- 10 I was cast upon You from birth. From My mother's womb you have been My God.
- 11 Be not far from Me, for trouble is near; for there is none to help.
- 12 Many bulls have surrounded Me; strong bulls of Bashan have encircled Me.
- 13 They gape at Me with their mouths, like a raging and roaring lion.
- 14 I am poured out like water, and all My bones are out of joint; my heart is like wax; it has melted within Me.
- 15 My strength is dried up like a potsherd, and My tongue clings to My jaws; you have brought Me to the dust of death.
- 16 For dogs have surrounded Me; the congregation of the wicked has enclosed Me. They pierced My hands and My feet;
- 17 I can count all My bones. They look and stare at Me.
- 18 They divide My garments among them, and for My clothing they cast lots.
- 19 But You, O LORD, do not be far from Me; O My Strength, hasten to help Me!
- 20 Deliver Me from the sword, my precious life from the power of the dog.
- 21 Save Me from the lion's mouth and from the horns of the wild oxen! You have answered Me.
- I will declare Your name to My brethren; in the midst of the assembly I will praise You.
- 23 You who fear the LORD, praise Him! All you descendants of Jacob, glorify Him, and fear Him, all you offspring of Israel!
- For He has not despised nor abhorred the affliction of the afflicted; nor has He hidden His face from Him; but when He cried to Him, He heard.
- 25 My praise shall be of You in the great assembly; I will pay My vows before those who fear Him.
- 26 The poor shall eat and be satisfied; those who seek Him will praise the LORD. Let your heart live forever!
- 27 All the ends of the world shall remember and turn to the LORD, and all the families of the nations shall worship before You.
- 28 For the kingdom is the LORD'S, and He rules over the nations.
- All the prosperous of the earth shall eat and worship; all those who go down to the dust shall bow before Him, even he who cannot keep himself alive.

- 30 A posterity shall serve Him. It will be recounted of the Lord to the next generation,
- They will come and declare His righteousness to a people who will be born, that He has done this.

Ps 24:1-10

- 1 The earth is the LORD'S, and all its fullness, the world and those who dwell therein.
- 2 For He has founded it upon the seas, and established it upon the waters.
- 3 Who may ascend into the hill of the LORD? Or who may stand in His holy place?
- 4 He who has clean hands and a pure heart, who has not lifted up his soul to an idol, nor sworn deceitfully.
- 5 He shall receive blessing from the LORD, and righteousness from the God of his salvation.
- 6 This is Jacob, the generation of those who seek Him, who seek Your face. Selah
- 7 Lift up your heads, O you gates! And be lifted up, you everlasting doors! And the King of glory shall come in.
- 8 Who is this King of glory? The LORD strong and mighty, the LORD mighty in battle.
- 9 Lift up your heads, O you gates! Lift up, you everlasting doors! And the King of glory shall come in.
- 10 Who is this King of glory? The LORD of hosts, he is the King of glory. Selah

Ps 40:1-17

- 1 I waited patiently for the LORD; and He inclined to me, and heard my cry.
- 2 He also brought me up out of a horrible pit, out of the miry clay, and set my feet upon a rock, and established my steps.
- 3 He has put a new song in my mouth-- praise to our God; many will see it and fear, and will trust in the LORD.
- 4 Blessed is that man who makes the LORD his trust, and does not respect the proud, nor such as turn aside to lies.
- 5 Many, O LORD my God, are Your wonderful works which You have done; and Your thoughts toward us cannot be recounted to You in order; if I would declare and speak of them, they are more than can be numbered.
- 6 Sacrifice and offering You did not desire; my ears You have opened; burnt offering and sin offering You did not require.
- 7 Then I said, "Behold, I come; in the scroll of the book it is written of me.
- 8 I delight to do Your will, O my God, and Your law is within my heart."
- 9 I have proclaimed the good news of righteousness in the great assembly; indeed, I do not restrain my lips, O LORD, You Yourself know.
- 10 I have not hidden Your righteousness within my heart; I have declared Your faithfulness and Your salvation; I have not concealed Your lovingkindness and Your truth from the great assembly.
- 11 Do not withhold Your tender mercies from me, O LORD; let Your lovingkindness and Your truth continually preserve me.

- 12 For innumerable evils have surrounded me; my iniquities have overtaken me, so that I am not able to look up; they are more than the hairs of my head; therefore my heart fails me.
- 13 Be pleased, O LORD, to deliver me; O LORD, make haste to help me!
- 14 Let them be ashamed and brought to mutual confusion who seek to destroy my life; let them be driven backward and brought to dishonor who wish me evil.
- 15 Let them be confounded because of their shame, who say to me, "Aha, aha!"
- 16 Let all those who seek You rejoice and be glad in You; let such as love Your salvation say continually, "The LORD be magnified!"
- 17 But I am poor and needy; yet the LORD thinks upon me. You are my help and my deliverer; do not delay, O my God.

Ps 42:1-11

- 1 As the deer pants for the water brooks, so pants my soul for You, O God.
- 2 My soul thirsts for God, for the living God. When shall I come and appear before God?
- 3 My tears have been my food day and night, while they continually say to me, "Where is your God?"
- 4 When I remember these things, I pour out my soul within me. For I used to go with the multitude; I went with them to the house of God, with the voice of joy and praise, with a multitude that kept a pilgrim feast.
- 5 Why are you cast down, O my soul? And why are you disquieted within me? Hope in God, for I shall yet praise Him for the help of His countenance.
- 6 O my God, my soul is cast down within me; therefore I will remember You from the land of the Jordan, and from the heights of Hermon, from the Hill Mizar.
- 7 Deep calls unto deep at the noise of Your waterfalls; all Your waves and billows have gone over me.
- 8 The LORD will command His lovingkindness in the daytime, and in the night His song shall be with me-- a prayer to the God of my life.
- 9 I will say to God my Rock, "Why have You forgotten me? Why do I go mourning because of the oppression of the enemy?"
- 10 As with a breaking of my bones, my enemies reproach me, while they say to me all day long, "Where is your God?"
- 11 Why are you cast down, O my soul? And why are you disquieted within me? Hope in God; for I shall yet praise Him, the help of my countenance and my God.

Ps 49:1-20

- 1 Hear this, all peoples; give ear, all inhabitants of the world,
- 2 Both low and high, rich and poor together.
- 3 My mouth shall speak wisdom, and the meditation of my heart shall give understanding.
- 4 I will incline my ear to a proverb; I will disclose my dark saying on the harp.
- 5 Why should I fear in the days of evil, when the iniquity at my heels surrounds me?
- 6 Those who trust in their wealth and boast in the multitude of their riches,

- 7 None of them can by any means redeem his brother, nor give to God a ransom for him--
- 8 For the redemption of their souls is costly, and it shall cease forever--
- 9 That he should continue to live eternally, and not see the Pit.
- 10 For he sees wise men die; likewise the fool and the senseless person perish, and leave their wealth to others.
- 11 Their inner thought is that their houses will last forever, their dwelling places to all generations; they call their lands after their own names.
- 12 Nevertheless man, though in honor, does not remain; he is like the beasts that perish.
- 13 This is the way of those who are foolish, and of their posterity who approve their sayings. Selah
- 14 Like sheep they are laid in the grave; death shall feed on them; the upright shall have dominion over them in the morning; and their beauty shall be consumed in the grave, far from their dwelling.
- 15 But God will redeem my soul from the power of the grave, for He shall receive me. Selah
- 16 Do not be afraid when one becomes rich, when the glory of his house is increased;
- 17 For when he dies he shall carry nothing away; his glory shall not descend after him.
- 18 Though while he lives he blesses himself (For men will praise you when you do well for yourself),
- 19 He shall go to the generation of his fathers; they shall never see light.
- A man who is in honor, yet does not understand, is like the beasts that perish.

Ps 52:1-9

- 1 Why do you boast in evil, O mighty man? The goodness of God endures continually.
- 2 Your tongue devises destruction, like a sharp razor, working deceitfully.
- 3 You love evil more than good, lying rather than speaking righteousness. Selah
- 4 You love all devouring words, you deceitful tongue.
- 5 God shall likewise destroy you forever; he shall take you away, and pluck you out of your dwelling place, and uproot you from the land of the living. Selah
- 6 The righteous also shall see and fear, and shall laugh at him, saying,
- 7 "Here is the man who did not make God his strength, but trusted in the abundance of his riches, and strengthened himself in his wickedness."
- 8 But I am like a green olive tree in the house of God; I trust in the mercy of God forever and ever.
- 9 I will praise You forever, because You have done it; and in the presence of Your saints I will wait on Your name, for it is good.

Psalms 53

1 The fool has said in his heart, "There is no God." They are corrupt, and have done abominable iniquity; there is none who does good.

- 2 God looks down from heaven upon the children of men, to see if there are any who understand, who seek God.
- 3 Every one of them has turned aside; they have together become corrupt; there is none who does good, no, not one.
- 4 Have the workers of iniquity no knowledge, who eat up my people as they eat bread, and do not call upon God?
- 5 There they are in great fear where no fear was, for God has scattered the bones of him who encamps against you; you have put them to shame, because God has despised them.
- 6 Oh, that the salvation of Israel would come out of Zion! When God brings back the captivity of His people, let Jacob rejoice and Israel be glad.

Ps 67:1-7

- 1 God be merciful to us and bless us, and cause His face to shine upon us. Selah
- 2 That Your way may be known on earth, your salvation among all nations.
- 3 Let the peoples praise You, O God; let all the peoples praise You.
- 4 Oh, let the nations be glad and sing for joy! For You shall judge the people righteously, and govern the nations on earth. Selah
- 5 Let the peoples praise You, O God; let all the peoples praise You.
- 6 Then the earth shall yield her increase; God, our own God, shall bless us.
- 7 God shall bless us, and all the ends of the earth shall fear Him.

Ps 68:18

You have ascended on high, you have led captivity captive; you have received gifts among men, even from the rebellious, that the LORD God might dwell there.

Ps 68:28-35

- 28 Your God has commanded your strength; strengthen, O God, what You have done for us.
- 29 Because of Your temple at Jerusalem, kings will bring presents to You.
- 30 Rebuke the beasts of the reeds, the herd of bulls with the calves of the peoples, till everyone submits himself with pieces of silver. Scatter the peoples who delight in war.
- 31 Envoys will come out of Egypt; Ethiopia will quickly stretch out her hands to God.
- 32 Sing to God, you kingdoms of the earth; Oh, sing praises to the Lord, Selah
- 33 To Him who rides on the heaven of heavens, which were of old! Indeed, He sends out His voice, a mighty voice.
- 34 Ascribe strength to God; his excellence is over Israel, and His strength is in the clouds.
- 35 O God, You are more awesome than Your holy places. The God of Israel is He who gives strength and power to His people. Blessed be God!

Ps 69:1-36

- 1 Save me, O God! For the waters have come up to my neck.
- 2 I sink in deep mire, where there is no standing; I have come into deep waters, where the floods overflow me.

- I am weary with my crying; my throat is dry; my eyes fail while I wait for my God.
- 4 Those who hate me without a cause are more than the hairs of my head; they are mighty who would destroy me, being my enemies wrongfully; though I have stolen nothing, I still must restore it.
- 5 O God, You know my foolishness; and my sins are not hidden from You.
- 6 Let not those who wait for You, O Lord GOD of hosts, be ashamed because of me; let not those who seek You be confounded because of me, O God of Israel.
- 7 Because for Your sake I have borne reproach; shame has covered my face.
- 8 I have become a stranger to my brothers, and an alien to my mother's children;
- 9 Because zeal for Your house has eaten me up, and the reproaches of those who reproach You have fallen on me.
- 10 When I wept and chastened my soul with fasting, that became my reproach.
- 11 I also made sackcloth my garment; I became a byword to them.
- 12 Those who sit in the gate speak against me, and I am the song of the drunkards.
- 13 But as for me, my prayer is to You, O LORD, in the acceptable time; O God, in the multitude of Your mercy, hear me in the truth of Your salvation.
- 14 Deliver me out of the mire, and let me not sink; let me be delivered from those who hate me, and out of the deep waters.
- 15 Let not the floodwater overflow me, nor let the deep swallow me up; and let not the pit shut its mouth on me.
- 16 Hear me, O LORD, for Your lovingkindness is good; turn to me according to the multitude of Your tender mercies.
- 17 And do not hide Your face from Your servant, for I am in trouble; hear me speedily.
- 18 Draw near to my soul, and redeem it; deliver me because of my enemies.
- 19 You know my reproach, my shame, and my dishonor; my adversaries are all before You.
- 20 Reproach has broken my heart, and I am full of heaviness; I looked for someone to take pity, but there was none; and for comforters, but I found none.
- 21 They also gave me gall for my food, and for my thirst they gave me vinegar to drink.
- Let their table become a snare before them, and their well-being a trap.
- 23 Let their eyes be darkened, so that they do not see; and make their loins shake continually.
- 24 Pour out Your indignation upon them, and let Your wrathful anger take hold of them.
- 25 Let their dwelling place be desolate; let no one live in their tents.
- For they persecute the ones You have struck, and talk of the grief of those You have wounded.
- Add iniquity to their iniquity, and let them not come into Your righteousness.
- Let them be blotted out of the book of the living, and not be written with the righteous.
- But I am poor and sorrowful; let Your salvation, O God, set me up on high.
- 30 I will praise the name of God with a song, and will magnify Him with thanksgiving.

- 31 This also shall please the LORD better than an ox or bull, which has horns and hooves.
- 32 The humble shall see this and be glad; and you who seek God, your hearts shall live.
- 33 For the LORD hears the poor, and does not despise His prisoners.
- 34 Let heaven and earth praise Him, the seas and everything that moves in them.
- 35 For God will save Zion and build the cities of Judah, that they may dwell there and possess it.
- 36 Also, the descendants of His servants shall inherit it, and those who love His name shall dwell in it.

Ps 72:1-19

- 1 Give the king Your judgments, O God, and Your righteousness to the king's Son.
- 2 He will judge Your people with righteousness, and Your poor with justice.
- 3 The mountains will bring peace to the people, and the little hills, by righteousness.
- 4 He will bring justice to the poor of the people; he will save the children of the needy, and will break in pieces the oppressor.
- 5 They shall fear You as long as the sun and moon endure, throughout all generations.
- 6 He shall come down like rain upon the grass before mowing, like showers that water the earth.
- 7 In His days the righteous shall flourish, and abundance of peace, until the moon is no more.
- 8 He shall have dominion also from sea to sea, and from the River to the ends of the earth.
- 9 Those who dwell in the wilderness will bow before Him, and His enemies will lick the dust.
- 10 The kings of Tarshish and of the isles will bring presents; the kings of Sheba and Seba will offer gifts.
- 11 Yes, all kings shall fall down before Him; all nations shall serve Him.
- 12 For He will deliver the needy when he cries, the poor also, and him who has no helper.
- 13 He will spare the poor and needy, and will save the souls of the needy.
- 14 He will redeem their life from oppression and violence; and precious shall be their blood in His sight.
- 15 And He shall live; and the gold of Sheba will be given to Him; prayer also will be made for Him continually, and daily He shall be praised.
- 16 There will be an abundance of grain in the earth, on the top of the mountains; its fruit shall wave like Lebanon; and those of the city shall flourish like grass of the earth.
- 17 His name shall endure forever; his name shall continue as long as the sun. And men shall be blessed in Him; all nations shall call Him blessed.
- 18 Blessed be the LORD God, the God of Israel, who only does wondrous things!
- 19 And blessed be His glorious name forever! And let the whole earth be filled with His glory. Amen and Amen.

Ps 78:2

I will open my mouth in a parable; I will utter dark sayings of old,

Ps 93:1-5

- 1 The LORD reigns, He is clothed with majesty; the LORD is clothed, he has girded Himself with strength. Surely the world is established, so that it cannot be moved.
- 2 Your throne is established from of old; you are from everlasting.
- 3 The floods have lifted up, O LORD, the floods have lifted up their voice; the floods lift up their waves.
- 4 The LORD on high is mightier than the noise of many waters, than the mighty waves of the sea.
- 5 Your testimonies are very sure; holiness adorns Your house, O LORD, forever.

Ps 96:1-13

- 1 Oh, sing to the LORD a new song! Sing to the LORD, all the earth.
- 2 Sing to the LORD, bless His name; proclaim the good news of His salvation from day to day.
- 3 Declare His glory among the nations, his wonders among all peoples.
- 4 For the LORD is great and greatly to be praised; he is to be feared above all gods.
- 5 For all the gods of the peoples are idols, but the LORD made the heavens.
- 6 Honor and majesty are before Him; strength and beauty are in His sanctuary.
- 7 Give to the LORD, O families of the peoples, give to the LORD glory and strength.
- 8 Give to the LORD the glory due His name; bring an offering, and come into His courts.
- 9 Oh, worship the LORD in the beauty of holiness! Tremble before Him, all the earth.
- 10 Say among the nations, "The LORD reigns; the world also is firmly established, it shall not be moved; he shall judge the peoples righteously."
- 11 Let the heavens rejoice, and let the earth be glad; let the sea roar, and all its fullness;
- 12 Let the field be joyful, and all that is in it. Then all the trees of the woods will rejoice before the LORD.
- 13 For He is coming, for He is coming to judge the earth. He shall judge the world with righteousness, and the peoples with His truth.

Ps 97:1-12

- 1 The LORD reigns; let the earth rejoice; let the multitude of isles be glad!
- 2 Clouds and darkness surround Him; righteousness and justice are the foundation of His throne.
- 3 A fire goes before Him, and burns up His enemies round about.
- 4 His lightnings light the world; the earth sees and trembles.
- 5 The mountains melt like wax at the presence of the LORD, at the presence of the Lord of the whole earth.

- 6 The heavens declare His righteousness, and all the peoples see His glory.
- 7 Let all be put to shame who serve carved images, who boast of idols. Worship Him, all you gods.
- 8 Zion hears and is glad, and the daughters of Judah rejoice because of Your judgments, O LORD.
- 9 For You, LORD, are most high above all the earth; you are exalted far above all gods.
- 10 You who love the LORD, hate evil! He preserves the souls of His saints; he delivers them out of the hand of the wicked.
- 11 Light is sown for the righteous, and gladness for the upright in heart.
- 12 Rejoice in the LORD, you righteous, and give thanks at the remembrance of His holy name.

Ps 98:1-9

- 1 Oh, sing to the LORD a new song! For He has done marvelous things; his right hand and His holy arm have gained Him the victory.
- 2 The LORD has made known His salvation; his righteousness He has revealed in the sight of the nations.
- 3 He has remembered His mercy and His faithfulness to the house of Israel; all the ends of the earth have seen the salvation of our God.
- 4 Shout joyfully to the LORD, all the earth; break forth in song, rejoice, and sing praises.
- 5 Sing to the LORD with the harp, with the harp and the sound of a psalm,
- 6 With trumpets and the sound of a horn; shout joyfully before the LORD, the King.
- 7 Let the sea roar, and all its fullness, the world and those who dwell in it;
- 8 Let the rivers clap their hands; let the hills be joyful together before the LORD,
- 9 For He is coming to judge the earth. With righteousness He shall judge the world, and the peoples with equity.

Ps 99:1-9

- 1 The LORD reigns; let the peoples tremble! He dwells between the cherubim; let the earth be moved!
- 2 The LORD is great in Zion, and He is high above all the peoples.
- 3 Let them praise Your great and awesome name-- he is holy.
- 4 The King's strength also loves justice; you have established equity; you have executed justice and righteousness in Jacob.
- 5 Exalt the LORD our God, and worship at His footstool-- he is holy.
- 6 Moses and Aaron were among His priests, and Samuel was among those who called upon His name; they called upon the LORD, and He answered them.
- 7 He spoke to them in the cloudy pillar; they kept His testimonies and the ordinance He gave them.
- 8 You answered them, O LORD our God; you were to them God-Who-Forgives, though You took vengeance on their deeds.
- 9 Exalt the LORD our God, and worship at His holy hill; for the LORD our God is holy.

Ps 110:1-7

- 1 The LORD said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool."
- 2 The LORD shall send the rod of Your strength out of Zion. Rule in the midst of Your enemies!
- 3 Your people shall be volunteers in the day of Your power; in the beauties of holiness, from the womb of the morning, you have the dew of Your youth.
- 4 The LORD has sworn and will not relent, "You are a priest forever according to the order of Melchizedek."
- 5 The Lord is at Your right hand; he shall execute kings in the day of His wrath.
- 6 He shall judge among the nations, he shall fill the places with dead bodies, he shall execute the heads of many countries.
- 7 He shall drink of the brook by the wayside; therefore He shall lift up the head.

Ps 118:19-29

- 19 Open to me the gates of righteousness; I will go through them, and I will praise the LORD.
- 20 This is the gate of the LORD, through which the righteous shall enter.
- 21 I will praise You, for You have answered me, and have become my salvation.
- 22 The stone which the builders rejected has become the chief cornerstone.
- 23 This was the LORD'S doing; it is marvelous in our eyes.
- 24 This is the day the LORD has made; we will rejoice and be glad in it.
- 25 Save now, I pray, O LORD; O LORD, I pray, send now prosperity.
- 26 Blessed is he who comes in the name of the LORD! We have blessed you from the house of the LORD.
- 27 God is the LORD, and He has given us light; bind the sacrifice with cords to the horns of the altar.
- 28 You are my God, and I will praise You; you are my God, I will exalt You.
- 29 Oh, give thanks to the LORD, for He is good! For His mercy endures forever.

lsa 7:14

"Therefore the Lord Himself will give you a sign: Behold, the virgin shall conceive and bear a Son, and shall call His name Immanuel.

lsa 9:6-7

- 6 For unto us a Child is born, unto us a Son is given; and the government will be upon His shoulder. And His name will be called wonderful, Counselor, Mighty God, everlasting Father, Prince of Peace.
- 7 Of the increase of His government and peace there will be no end, upon the throne of David and over His kingdom, to order it and establish it with judgment and justice from that time forward, even forever. The zeal of the LORD of hosts will perform this.

lsa 11:1-16

1 There shall come forth a Rod from the stem of Jesse, and a Branch shall grow out of his roots.

- 2 The Spirit of the LORD shall rest upon Him, the Spirit of wisdom and understanding, the Spirit of counsel and might, the Spirit of knowledge and of the fear of the LORD.
- 3 His delight is in the fear of the LORD, and He shall not judge by the sight of His eyes, nor decide by the hearing of His ears;
- 4 But with righteousness He shall judge the poor, and decide with equity for the meek of the earth; he shall strike the earth with the rod of His mouth, and with the breath of His lips He shall slay the wicked.
- 5 Righteousness shall be the belt of His loins, and faithfulness the belt of His waist.
- 6 "The wolf also shall dwell with the lamb, the leopard shall lie down with the young goat, the calf and the young lion and the fatling together; and a little child shall lead them.
- 7 The cow and the bear shall graze; their young ones shall lie down together; and the lion shall eat straw like the ox.
- 8 The nursing child shall play by the cobra's hole, and the weaned child shall put his hand in the viper's den.
- 9 They shall not hurt nor destroy in all My holy mountain, for the earth shall be full of the knowledge of the LORD as the waters cover the sea.
- 10 "And in that day there shall be a Root of Jesse, who shall stand as a banner to the people; for the Gentiles shall seek Him, and His resting place shall be glorious."
- 11 It shall come to pass in that day that the LORD shall set His hand again the second time to recover the remnant of His people who are left, from Assyria and Egypt, from Pathros and Cush, from Elam and Shinar, from Hamath and the islands of the sea.
- 12 He will set up a banner for the nations, and will assemble the outcasts of Israel, and gather together the dispersed of Judah from the four corners of the earth.
- 13 Also the envy of Ephraim shall depart, and the adversaries of Judah shall be cut off; Ephraim shall not envy Judah, and Judah shall not harass Ephraim.
- 14 But they shall fly down upon the shoulder of the Philistines toward the west; together they shall plunder the people of the East; they shall lay their hand on Edom and Moab; and the people of Ammon shall obey them.
- 15 The LORD will utterly destroy the tongue of the Sea of Egypt; with His mighty wind He will shake His fist over the River, and strike it in the seven streams, and make men cross over dry-shod.
- 16 There will be a highway for the remnant of His people who will be left from Assyria, as it was for Israel in the day that he came up from the land of Egypt.

lsa 35:1-10

- 1 The wilderness and the wasteland shall be glad for them, and the desert shall rejoice and blossom as the rose;
- 2 It shall blossom abundantly and rejoice, even with joy and singing. The glory of Lebanon shall be given to it, the excellence of Carmel and Sharon. They shall see the glory of the LORD, the excellency of our God.
- 3 Strengthen the weak hands, and make firm the feeble knees.

- 4 Say to those who are fearful-hearted, "Be strong, do not fear! Behold, your God will come with vengeance, with the recompense of God; he will come and save you."
- 5 Then the eyes of the blind shall be opened, and the ears of the deaf shall be unstopped.
- 6 Then the lame shall leap like a deer, and the tongue of the dumb sing. For waters shall burst forth in the wilderness, and streams in the desert.
- 7 The parched ground shall become a pool, and the thirsty land springs of water; in the habitation of jackals, where each lay, there shall be grass with reeds and rushes.
- 8 A highway shall be there, and a road, and it shall be called the Highway of Holiness. The unclean shall not pass over it, but it shall be for others. Whoever walks the road, although a fool, shall not go astray.
- 9 No lion shall be there, nor shall any ravenous beast go up on it; it shall not be found there. But the redeemed shall walk there,
- 10 And the ransomed of the LORD shall return, and come to Zion with singing, with everlasting joy on their heads. They shall obtain joy and gladness, and sorrow and sighing shall flee away.

lsa 40:3

The voice of one crying in the wilderness: "Prepare the way of the LORD; make straight in the desert a highway for our God.

lsa 53:4

Surely He has borne our griefs and carried our sorrows; yet we esteemed Him stricken, smitten by God, and afflicted.

lsa 52:1-53:12

- 1 Awake, awake! Put on your strength, O Zion; put on your beautiful garments, O Jerusalem, the holy city! For the uncircumcised and the unclean shall no longer come to you.
- 2 Shake yourself from the dust, arise; sit down, O Jerusalem! Loose yourself from the bonds of your neck, O captive daughter of Zion!
- 3 For thus says the LORD: "You have sold yourselves for nothing, and you shall be redeemed without money."
- 4 For thus says the Lord GOD: "My people went down at first into Egypt to dwell there; then the Assyrian oppressed them without cause.
- 5 Now therefore, what have I here," says the LORD, "That My people are taken away for nothing? Those who rule over them make them wail," says the LORD, "And My name is blasphemed continually every day.
- 6 Therefore My people shall know My name; therefore they shall know in that day that I am He who speaks: 'Behold, it is I.'"
- 7 How beautiful upon the mountains are the feet of him who brings good news, who proclaims peace, who brings glad tidings of good things, who proclaims salvation, who says to Zion, "Your God reigns!"

- 8 Your watchmen shall lift up their voices, with their voices they shall sing together; for they shall see eye to eye when the LORD brings back Zion.
- 9 Break forth into joy, sing together, you waste places of Jerusalem! For the LORD has comforted His people, he has redeemed Jerusalem.
- 10 The LORD has made bare His holy arm in the eyes of all the nations; and all the ends of the earth shall see the salvation of our God.
- 11 Depart! Depart! Go out from there, touch no unclean thing; go out from the midst of her, be clean, you who bear the vessels of the LORD.
- 12 For you shall not go out with haste, nor go by flight; for the LORD will go before you, and the God of Israel will be your rear guard.
- 13 Behold, My Servant shall deal prudently; he shall be exalted and extolled and be very high.
- 14 Just as many were astonished at you, so His visage was marred more than any man, and His form more than the sons of men;
- 15 So shall He sprinkle many nations. Kings shall shut their mouths at Him; for what had not been told them they shall see, and what they had not heard they shall consider.

CHAPTER 53

- 1 Who has believed our report? And to whom has the arm of the LORD been revealed?
- 2 For He shall grow up before Him as a tender plant, and as a root out of dry ground. He has no form or comeliness; and when we see Him, there is no beauty that we should desire Him.
- 3 He is despised and rejected by men, a Man of sorrows and acquainted with grief. And we hid, as it were, our faces from Him; he was despised, and we did not esteem Him.
- 4 Surely He has borne our griefs and carried our sorrows; yet we esteemed Him stricken, smitten by God, and afflicted.
- 5 But He was wounded for our transgressions, he was bruised for our iniquities; the chastisement for our peace was upon Him, and by His stripes we are healed.
- 6 All we like sheep have gone astray; we have turned, every one, to his own way; and the LORD has laid on Him the iniquity of us all.
- 7 He was oppressed and He was afflicted, yet He opened not His mouth; he was led as a lamb to the slaughter, and as a sheep before its shearers is silent, so He opened not His mouth.
- 8 He was taken from prison and from judgment, and who will declare His generation? For He was cut off from the land of the living; for the transgressions of My people He was stricken.
- 9 And they made His grave with the wicked-- but with the rich at His death, because He had done no violence, nor was any deceit in His mouth.
- 10 Yet it pleased the LORD to bruise Him; he has put Him to grief. When You make His soul an offering for sin, he shall see His seed, He shall prolong His days, and the pleasure of the LORD shall prosper in His hand.

- 11 He shall see the labor of His soul, and be satisfied. By His knowledge My righteous Servant shall justify many, for He shall bear their iniquities.
- 12 Therefore I will divide Him a portion with the great, and He shall divide the spoil with the strong, because He poured out His soul unto death, and He was numbered with the transgressors, and He bore the sin of many, and made intercession for the transgressors.

lsa 61:1

"The Spirit of the Lord GOD is upon Me, because the LORD has anointed Me to preach good tidings to the poor; he has sent Me to heal the brokenhearted, to proclaim liberty to the captives, and the opening of the prison to those who are bound;

Jer 23:5-8

- 5 "Behold, the days are coming," says the LORD, "That I will raise to David a Branch of righteousness; a King shall reign and prosper, and execute judgment and righteousness in the earth.
- 6 In His days Judah will be saved, and Israel will dwell safely; now this is His name by which He will be called: THE LORD OUR RIGHTEOUSNESS.
- 7 "Therefore, behold, the days are coming," says the LORD, "that they shall no longer say, 'As the LORD lives who brought up the children of Israel from the land of Egypt,'
- 8 "but, 'As the LORD lives who brought up and led the descendants of the house of Israel from the north country and from all the countries where I had driven them.' And they shall dwell in their own land."

Jer 33:17-21

- 17 "For thus says the LORD: 'David shall never lack a man to sit on the throne of the house of Israel;
- 18 'nor shall the priests, the Levites, lack a man to offer burnt offerings before Me, to kindle grain offerings, and to sacrifice continually."
- 19 And the word of the LORD came to Jeremiah, saying,
- 20 "Thus says the LORD: 'If you can break My covenant with the day and My covenant with the night, so that there will not be day and night in their season,
- 21 'then My covenant may also be broken with David My servant, so that he shall not have a son to reign on his throne, and with the Levites, the priests, My ministers.

Dan 7:1-28

- 1 In the first year of Belshazzar king of Babylon, Daniel had a dream and visions of his head while on his bed. Then he wrote down the dream, telling the main facts.
- 2 Daniel spoke, saying, "I saw in my vision by night, and behold, the four winds of heaven were stirring up the Great Sea.
- 3 "And four great beasts came up from the sea, each different from the other.

- 4 "The first was like a lion, and had eagle's wings. I watched till its wings were plucked off; and it was lifted up from the earth and made to stand on two feet like a man, and a man's heart was given to it.
- 5 "And suddenly another beast, a second, like a bear. It was raised up on one side, and had three ribs in its mouth between its teeth. And they said thus to it: 'Arise, devour much flesh!'
- 6 "After this I looked, and there was another, like a leopard, which had on its back four wings of a bird. The beast also had four heads, and dominion was given to it.
- 7 "After this I saw in the night visions, and behold, a fourth beast, dreadful and terrible, exceedingly strong. It had huge iron teeth; it was devouring, breaking in pieces, and trampling the residue with its feet. It was different from all the beasts that were before it, and it had ten horns.
- 8 "I was considering the horns, and there was another horn, a little one, coming up among them, before whom three of the first horns were plucked out by the roots. And there, in this horn, were eyes like the eyes of a man, and a mouth speaking pompous words.
- 9 "I watched till thrones were put in place, and the Ancient of Days was seated; his garment was white as snow, and the hair of His head was like pure wool. His throne was a fiery flame, its wheels a burning fire;
- 10 A fiery stream issued and came forth from before Him. A thousand thousands ministered to Him; ten thousand times ten thousand stood before Him. The court was seated, and the books were opened.
- 11 "I watched then because of the sound of the pompous words which the horn was speaking; I watched till the beast was slain, and its body destroyed and given to the burning flame.
- 12 "As for the rest of the beasts, they had their dominion taken away, yet their lives were prolonged for a season and a time.
- 13 "I was watching in the night visions, and behold, One like the Son of Man, coming with the clouds of heaven! He came to the Ancient of Days, and they brought Him near before Him.
- 14 Then to Him was given dominion and glory and a kingdom, that all peoples, nations, and languages should serve Him. His dominion is an everlasting dominion, which shall not pass away, and His kingdom the one which shall not be destroyed.
- 15 "I, Daniel, was grieved in my spirit within my body, and the visions of my head troubled me.
- 16 "I came near to one of those who stood by, and asked him the truth of all this. So he told me and made known to me the interpretation of these things:
- 17 'Those great beasts, which are four, are four kings which arise out of the earth.
- 18 'But the saints of the Most High shall receive the kingdom, and possess the kingdom forever, even forever and ever.'
- 19 "Then I wished to know the truth about the fourth beast, which was different from all the others, exceedingly dreadful, with its teeth of iron and its nails of bronze, which devoured, broke in pieces, and trampled the residue with its feet;

- 20 "and the ten horns that were on its head, and the other horn which came up, before which three fell, namely, that horn which had eyes and a mouth which spoke pompous words, whose appearance was greater than his fellows.
- 21 "I was watching; and the same horn was making war against the saints, and prevailing against them,
- ²² "until the Ancient of Days came, and a judgment was made in favor of the saints of the Most High, and the time came for the saints to possess the kingdom.
- 23 "Thus he said: 'The fourth beast shall be a fourth kingdom on earth, which shall be different from all other kingdoms, and shall devour the whole earth, trample it and break it in pieces.
- 24 The ten horns are ten kings who shall arise from this kingdom. And another shall rise after them; he shall be different from the first ones, and shall subdue three kings.
- 25 He shall speak pompous words against the Most High, shall persecute the saints of the Most High, and shall intend to change times and law. Then the saints shall be given into his hand for a time and times and half a time.
- 26 'But the court shall be seated, and they shall take away his dominion, to consume and destroy it forever.
- 27 Then the kingdom and dominion, and the greatness of the kingdoms under the whole heaven, shall be given to the people, the saints of the Most High. His kingdom is an everlasting kingdom, and all dominions shall serve and obey Him.'
- 28 "This is the end of the account. As for me, Daniel, my thoughts greatly troubled me, and my countenance changed; but I kept the matter in my heart."

Dan 9:25-26

- 25 "Know therefore and understand, that from the going forth of the command to restore and build Jerusalem until Messiah the Prince, there shall be seven weeks and sixty-two weeks; the street shall be built again, and the wall, even in troublesome times.
- 26 "And after the sixty-two weeks Messiah shall be cut off, but not for Himself; and the people of the prince who is to come shall destroy the city and the sanctuary. The end of it shall be with a flood, and till the end of the war desolations are determined.

Hag 2:9

'The glory of this latter temple shall be greater than the former,' says the LORD of hosts. 'And in this place I will give peace,' says the LORD of hosts."

Zech 6:11-13

- 11 "Take the silver and gold, make an elaborate crown, and set it on the head of Joshua the son of Jehozadak, the high priest.
- 12 "Then speak to him, saying, 'Thus says the LORD of hosts, saying: "Behold, the Man whose name is the BRANCH! From His place He shall branch out, and He shall build the temple of the LORD;

13 Yes, He shall build the temple of the LORD. He shall bear the glory, and shall sit and rule on His throne; so He shall be a priest on His throne, and the counsel of peace shall be between them both." '

Zech 12:10-14

- 10 "And I will pour on the house of David and on the inhabitants of Jerusalem the Spirit of grace and supplication; then they will look on Me whom they have pierced; they will mourn for Him as one mourns for his only son, and grieve for Him as one grieves for a firstborn.
- 11 "In that day there shall be a great mourning in Jerusalem, like the mourning at Hadad Rimmon in the plain of Megiddo.
- 12 "And the land shall mourn, every family by itself: the family of the house of David by itself, and their wives by themselves; the family of the house of Nathan by itself, and their wives by themselves;
- 13 "the family of the house of Levi by itself, and their wives by themselves; the family of Shimei by itself, and their wives by themselves;
- 14 "all the families that remain, every family by itself, and their wives by themselves.

Zech 13:6-7

- 6 "And one will say to him, 'What are these wounds between your arms?' Then he will answer, 'Those with which I was wounded in the house of my friends.'
- 7 "Awake, O sword, against My Shepherd, against the Man who is My Companion," says the LORD of hosts. "Strike the Shepherd, and the sheep will be scattered; then I will turn My hand against the little ones.

Mal 3:1-7

- 1 "Behold, I send My messenger, and he will prepare the way before Me. And the Lord, whom you seek, will suddenly come to His temple, even the Messenger of the covenant, in whom you delight. Behold, He is coming," says the LORD of hosts.
- 2 "But who can endure the day of His coming? And who can stand when He appears? For He is like a refiner's fire and like launderer's soap.
- 3 He will sit as a refiner and a purifier of silver; he will purify the sons of Levi, and purge them as gold and silver, that they may offer to the LORD an offering in righteousness.
- 4 "Then the offering of Judah and Jerusalem will be pleasant to the LORD, as in the days of old, as in former years.
- 5 And I will come near you for judgment; I will be a swift witness against sorcerers, against adulterers, against perjurers, against those who exploit wage earners and widows and orphans, and against those who turn away an alien-- because they do not fear Me," says the LORD of hosts.
- 6 "For I am the LORD, I do not change; therefore you are not consumed, O sons of Jacob.
- 7 Yet from the days of your fathers you have gone away from My ordinances and have not kept them. Return to Me, and I will return to you," says the LORD of hosts. "But you said, 'In what way shall we return?'

Mal 4:1-6

- 1 "For behold, the day is coming, burning like an oven, and all the proud, yes, all who do wickedly will be stubble. And the day which is coming shall burn them up," says the LORD of hosts, "That will leave them neither root nor branch.
- 2 But to you who fear My name the Sun of Righteousness shall arise with healing in His wings; and you shall go out and grow fat like stall-fed calves.
- 3 You shall trample the wicked, for they shall be ashes under the soles of your feet on the day that I do this," says the LORD of hosts.
- 4 "Remember the Law of Moses, My servant, which I commanded him in Horeb for all Israel, with the statutes and judgments.
- 5 Behold, I will send you Elijah the prophet before the coming of the great and dreadful day of the LORD.
- 6 And he will turn the hearts of the fathers to the children, and the hearts of the children to their fathers, lest I come and strike the earth with a curse."

Matt 11:3-6

- 3 and said to Him, "Are You the Coming One, or do we look for another?"
- 4 Jesus answered and said to them, "Go and tell John the things which you hear and see:
- 5 "The blind see and the lame walk; the lepers are cleansed and the deaf hear; the dead are raised up and the poor have the gospel preached to them.
- 6 "And blessed is he who is not offended because of Me."

Matt 16:15-16

- 15 He said to them, "But who do you say that I am?"
- 16 Simon Peter answered and said, "You are the Christ, the Son of the living God."

Matt 22:42-45

- 42 saying, "What do you think about the Christ? Whose Son is He?" They said to Him, "The Son of David."
- 43 He said to them, "How then does David in the Spirit call Him `Lord,' saying:
- 14 The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool" '?
- 45 "If David then calls Him `Lord,' how is He his Son?"

Matt 26:63-64

- 63 But Jesus kept silent. And the high priest answered and said to Him, "I put You under oath by the living God: Tell us if You are the Christ, the Son of God!"
- 64 Jesus said to him, "It is as you said. Nevertheless, I say to you, hereafter you will see the Son of Man sitting at the right hand of the Power, and coming on the clouds of heaven."

Mark 12:35-37

35 Then Jesus answered and said, while He taught in the temple, "How is it that the scribes say that the Christ is the Son of David?

- 36 "For David himself said by the Holy Spirit: `The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand, till I make Your enemies Your footstool." '
- 37 "Therefore David himself calls Him `Lord'; how is He then his Son?" And the common people heard Him gladly.

Luke 2:28-32

- 28 he took Him up in his arms and blessed God and said:
- 29 "Lord, now You are letting Your servant depart in peace, according to Your word;
- 30 For my eyes have seen Your salvation
- 31 Which You have prepared before the face of all peoples,
- 32 A light to bring revelation to the Gentiles, and the glory of Your people Israel."

Luke 2:38

And coming in that instant she gave thanks to the Lord, and spoke of Him to all those who looked for redemption in Jerusalem.

Luke 20:41-44

- 41 And He said to them, "How can they say that the Christ is the Son of David?
- 42 "Now David himself said in the Book of Psalms, `The Lord said to my Lord, "Sit at My right hand,
- 43 Till I make Your enemies Your footstool." '
- 44 "Therefore David calls Him `Lord'; how is He then his Son?"

Luke 24:25-27

- 25 Then He said to them, "O foolish ones, and slow of heart to believe in all that the prophets have spoken!
- 26 "Ought not the Christ to have suffered these things and to enter into His glory?"
- 27 And beginning at Moses and all the Prophets, He expounded to them in all the Scriptures the things concerning Himself.

John 1:41

He first found his own brother Simon, and said to him, "We have found the Messiah" (which is translated, the Christ).

John 1:45

Philip found Nathanael and said to him, "We have found Him of whom Moses in the law, and also the prophets, wrote-- Jesus of Nazareth, the son of Joseph."

John 4:25-26

- 25 The woman said to Him, "I know that Messiah is coming" (who is called Christ). "When He comes, He will tell us all things."
- 26 Jesus said to her, "I who speak to you am He."

John 4:29

"Come, see a Man who told me all things that I ever did. Could this be the Christ?"

John 4:42

Then they said to the woman, "Now we believe, not because of what you said, for we ourselves have heard Him and we know that this is indeed the Christ, the Savior of the world."

John 5:33

"You have sent to John, and he has borne witness to the truth.

John 5:36-37

- 36 "But I have a greater witness than John's; for the works which the Father has given Me to finish-- the very works that I do-- bear witness of Me, that the Father has sent Me.
- 37 "And the Father Himself, who sent Me, has testified of Me. You have neither heard His voice at any time, nor seen His form.

John 5:39

"You search the Scriptures, for in them you think you have eternal life; and these are they which testify of Me.

John 5:46

"For if you believed Moses, you would believe Me; for he wrote about Me.

John 6:27

"Do not labor for the food which perishes, but for the food which endures to everlasting life, which the Son of Man will give you, because God the Father has set His seal on Him."

John 8:14

Jesus answered and said to them, "Even if I bear witness of Myself, My witness is true, for I know where I came from and where I am going; but you do not know where I come from and where I am going.

John 8:17-18

- 17 "It is also written in your law that the testimony of two men is true.
- 18 "I am One who bears witness of Myself, and the Father who sent Me bears witness of Me."

John 8:25

Then they said to Him, "Who are You?" And Jesus said to them, "Just what I have been saying to you from the beginning.

John 8:28

Then Jesus said to them, "When you lift up the Son of Man, then you will know that <u>I am He</u>, and that I do nothing of Myself; but as My Father taught Me, I speak these things.

John 8:56

"Your father Abraham rejoiced to see My day, and he saw it and was glad."

John 13:19

"Now I tell you before it comes, that when it does come to pass, you may believe that <u>I am He</u>.

Acts 3:18

"But those things which God foretold by the mouth of all His prophets, that the Christ would suffer, <u>He has thus fulfilled</u>.

Acts 3:20

"and that He may send Jesus Christ, who was preached to you before,

Acts 3:24

"Yes, and all the prophets, from Samuel and those who follow, as many as have spoken, have also foretold these days.

Acts 4:26-27

- 26 The kings of the earth took their stand, and the rulers were gathered together against the Lord and against His Christ.'
- 27 "For truly against Your holy Servant Jesus, whom You anointed, both Herod and Pontius Pilate, with the Gentiles and the people of Israel, were gathered together

Acts 9:22

But <u>Saul</u> increased all the more in strength, and confounded the Jews who dwelt in Damascus, proving that this Jesus is the Christ.

Acts 13:27

"For those who dwell in Jerusalem, and their rulers, because they did not know Him, nor even the voices of the Prophets which are read every Sabbath, have fulfilled them in condemning Him.

Acts 17:2-3

- 2 Then Paul, as his custom was, went in to them, and for three Sabbaths reasoned with them from the Scriptures,
- 3 explaining and demonstrating that the Christ had to suffer and rise again from the dead, and saying, "<u>This Jesus whom I preach to you is the Christ</u>."

Acts 26:6-7

- 6 "And now I stand and am judged for the hope of the promise made by God to our fathers.
- 7 "To this promise our twelve tribes, earnestly serving God night and day, hope to attain. For this hope's sake, King Agrippa, I am accused by the Jews.

Acts 26:22-23

- 22 "Therefore, having obtained help from God, to this day I stand, witnessing both to small and great, saying no other things than those which the prophets and Moses said would come--
- 23 "that the Christ would suffer, that He would be the first to rise from the dead, and would proclaim light to the Jewish people and to the Gentiles."

Acts 28:23

So when they had appointed him a day, many came to him at his lodging, to whom he explained and solemnly testified of the kingdom of God, persuading them concerning Jesus from both the Law of Moses and the Prophets, from morning till evening.

Rom 1:1-3

- 1 Paul, a bondservant of Jesus Christ, called to be an apostle, separated to the gospel of God
- 2 which He promised before through His prophets in the Holy Scriptures,
- 3 concerning His Son Jesus Christ our Lord, who was born of the seed of David according to the flesh,

1 Cor 15:3

For I delivered to you first of all that which I also received: that Christ died for our sins according to the Scriptures,

1 Pet 1:10-11

- 10 Of this salvation the prophets have inquired and searched carefully, who prophesied of the grace that would come to you,
- 11 searching what, or what manner of time, the Spirit of Christ who was in them was indicating when He testified beforehand the sufferings of Christ and the glories that would follow.

2 Pet 1:16-18

- 16 For we did not follow cunningly devised fables when we made known to you the power and coming of our Lord Jesus Christ, but were eyewitnesses of His majesty.
- 17 For He received from God the Father honor and glory when such a voice came to Him from the Excellent Glory: "This is My beloved Son, in whom I am well pleased."
- 18 And we heard this voice which came from heaven when we were with Him on the holy mountain.

l Jn 5:6-9

- 6 This is He who came by water and blood-- Jesus Christ; not only by water, but by water and blood. And it is the Spirit who bears witness, because the Spirit is truth.
- 7 For there are three that bear witness in heaven: the Father, the Word, and the Holy Spirit; and these three are one.

- 8 And there are three that bear witness on earth: the Spirit, the water, and the blood; and these three agree as one.
- 9 If we receive the witness of men, the witness of God is greater; for this is the witness of God which He has testified of His Son.

PROPHETIC CHART A: First Advent to Crucifixion ((partial list)
---	----------------

EVENT	PROPHESY	FULFILLMENT
Virgin Birth	Gen 3:15; ls 7:14	Mt 1:16; 23
in Bethlehem	Mic 5:2	Mt 2:6
Line of Abraham	Gen 12:2	Mt 1:1, Gal 3:16, Lk 3:34
Line of Judah	Gen 49:10	Mt 1:2, Lk 3:33
Line of David	2 Sam 7:12-16	Mt 1:1, Lk 3:31
Root of Jesse	lsa 11:1,10	Rom 15:12, Lk 3:32
Forerunner: John	Isa 40:3; Mal 3:1	Mt 3:3
Anointed by Holy Spirit	lsa 11:2, 42:1-4	Lk 3:22, Mk 1:10; Mt 12:17-21
Mission	lsa 61:1-2, 9:1-2, 53:3-6	Lk 4:14-20, Mk 1:9-11; Ac 26:23
Taught by Parables	Ps 78:2; Isa 29:14	Mt 3:13, 13:34-35; Mk 4:2
Triumphant Entry	Zech 9:9	Mt 21:5-11
Rejected by His people	Ps 118:22; ls 29:3; Zec 13:7	1Pe 2:7; Mt 21:42, 15:8-9
Bore our sins	Ps 79:9, Isa 1:18, 44:22	1Pe 2:24
Betrayed	Ps 41:9	Jn 13:8, Ac 1:16-17
for 30 pieces silver	Zech 11:12-13; Jer 19:4-6	Mt 27:9-10
Substitutiary, violent death	lsa 52-53, Ps 22	1Jn 2:2, 4:9-10; Ro 3:24-25
Forsaken	Ps 22:1	Mt 27:46; Mk 15:34
Ridiculed	Ps 22:7-8	Mt 27:39-44; Mk 15:29-32
Crucified	ls 52:14	Jn 19:1-18, Lk 23:33
As a Lamb to Slaughter	ls 53:7	Mt 26:63, 27:13-14; Mk 15:1-5
Cast lots for garments	Ps 22:18	Mk 15:24, Jn 19:24
Hands, feet pierced	Ps 22:16, Zec 12:10	Jn 20:20,25,27
No bone is broken		Jn 19:33-36
Vinegar to drink	Ps 69:21	Mt 27:48; Lk 23:36

PROPHETIC CHART B: First Advent of Messiah (partial list)

EVENT	PROPHESY	FULFILLMENT
Names for Messiah	lsa 9:6	Lk 1:35
Resurrection	Ps 16:10	Mt 28:6,
Ascension		
Reign as Soverign King		